
1�

 

 
 

London Legacy Development Corporation 
Planning Decisions Committee 

 
 
�

Date Tuesday 24 January 2017 

Time Commencing at 6.00pm 

Venue LLDC meeting rooms 1 and 2, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet 
Road, London, E20 1EJ 

Contact: Zena Hassan, Assistant Committee Secretary; Tel: 020 3288 8834; 
Email: planningcommittee@londonlegacy.co.uk 
 

�

 
 
 Committee Members   

  

Philip Lewis - Chair   
Nicholas Bitel  
Lord Andrew Mawson OBE Borough Substitutes 
Councillor Rachel Blake  Councillor Amina Ali 
Councillor Ken Clark LB Newham TBC 
Councillor Forhad Hussain LB Newham TBC 
Councillor Geoff Taylor Councillor Guy Nicholson 
Councillor Terry Wheeler Councillor Stuart Emmerson 
  
  
  
 

 
 
 
Officers usually in attendance  
 
Anthony Hollingsworth   Director of Planning Policy and Decisions 
Jamie Lockerbie  Legal Representative  
Eleanor Lloyd   Committee Secretary 
Zena Hassan     Assistant Committee Secretary  



 
How decisions are taken at the meeting  
 
Where items are uncontroversial, the Planning Decisions Committee may sometimes make a 
decision based on the report of the planning officer without extensive presentation and discussion. It 
is expected that normally planning applications will be determined as follows:  
 

- the Chair takes the item as it appears on the agenda  

- the planning officer will present the report  

- Committee Members may ask questions  

- the objector(s) to the recommendation speak – usually five minutes  

- the supporter(s) to the recommendation speak – usually five minutes  

- Committee Members may ask questions of those who have spoken and ask the planning 
officer to respond  

- Committee Members will discuss and then determine the application or make other such 
recommendation as is appropriate. Further representations or comments are not heard at 
this point but clarification may be sought from officers.  

 
When decisions are taken that are contrary to the planning officer’s recommendation, the 
Committee must give reasons for its decision based on planning grounds. If Members are minded to 
overturn the officer’s recommendation and objectors/supporters have been unable to attend the 
meeting to make representations in person then the matter will be deferred to the next available 
meeting for a further report. 
 
This meeting will be open to the public, except for where exempt information is being discussed as 
noted on the agenda. A guide for the press and public on attending and reporting meetings of local 
government bodies, including the use of film, photography, social media and other means is 
available at 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/343182/140812_Ope
nness_Guide.pdf. 



Agenda 

 
 
London Legacy Development Corporation 
 
Agenda for the 47th meeting of the Planning Decisions Committee 

 

Date: Tuesday 24 January 2017 

Time: Commencing at 6.00pm 

Venue: LLDC meeting rooms 1 and 2, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet Road, 
London, E20 1EJ 

 

Members of the London Legacy Development Corporation Planning Decisions Committee 
are hereby notified and requested to attend the meeting of the Planning Decisions 
Committee at 6.00 pm on Tuesday 24 January 2017 to transact the business set out below. 

David Goldstone CBE, Chief Executive 
Monday 16 January 2017 

 
 

1 Updates, Order of Business and Requests to Speak  
 

 

2 Apologies for Absence  
 

 

3 Declarations of Interest (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 

4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 20 December 2016 (Pages 5 - 14) 
 

 

5 Strand East Bridge - 16/00423/REM (Pages 15 - 44) 
 

 

6 East Wick Phase 1 - 16/00530/NMA; 16/00520/REM; 16/00502/AOD  (Pages 45 - 100) 
 

 

7 Decisions Made Under Delegated Authority (Pages 101 - 114) 
 

 

8 Any Urgent Business  
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
Subject: Declarations of Interests Received for the 47th meeting of the 

Planning Decisions Committee 

Date:  24 January 2017 

Time:  6:00pm 

Venue: Rooms 1, 2, 3 & Marketing Suite, LLDC, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, 
Montfichet Road, London E20 1EJ 

 
FOR NOTING 

This report will be considered in public 

 
1. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
1.1 For the purposes of transparency, where a Member of the Committee is an 

elected Member of a Host Borough to which a planning application and/or other 
matter to be dealt with at this meeting relates, that fact will be set out in this 
report, noting that being an elected Member of a Host Borough in itself does not 
constitute a disclosable pecuniary interest. However, if the Member concerned 
does have a disclosable pecuniary interest for the reasons set out in section 3 of 
this report he/she will need to declare it prior to and/or at the meeting and take 
the necessary consequential actions. Any Member in attendance as a substitute 
will similarly need to declare any interests in the business on the agenda, 
including disclosable pecuniary interests, at the meeting.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1  In light of the items of business listed on the agenda for this meeting of the 

Committee, the relevant Members are asked to declare any disclosable 
interests and state whether or not any of the interests declared are or 
could:  

2.1.1 fall within the definition of pecuniary interests as set out in The 
Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 
2012 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests Regulations) (as the same 
may be amended); or  

2.1.2  if they are not disclosable pecuniary interests are classed as 
interests which are material and which conflict or may conflict with 
the interests of the Corporation.  

 
2.2 That the interests set out below be noted. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



3. EXPLANATION OF INTERESTS  
 
3.1 A Member of this Planning Decisions Committee who is present at a meeting of 

this Committee and who has and/or may reasonably be considered to have a 
pecuniary interest in any item of business before the meeting, shall at the 
meeting and as soon as practicable after its commencement disclose the nature 
and extent of his or her interest. Provided that, with regard to any disclosable 
pecuniary interest that falls within the definition of a sensitive interest (as set out 
in regulation 32 of the Disclosable Pecuniary Interests Regulations), the Member 
shall be permitted to disclose not the interest but the fact that he or she has a 
disclosable pecuniary interest in the matter concerned.  

 
3.2 A Member who has and/or may reasonably be considered to have a disclosable 

pecuniary interest shall not unless he or she is granted a dispensation pursuant 
to regulation 33 of the Disclosable Pecuniary Interests Regulations:  

(a) participate, or participate further, in the consideration or discussion of the 
matter and shall leave the meeting during its consideration; and  

(b) vote, or further vote, on any question or matter with respect to it.  
 
3.3  A Member of this Planning Decisions Committee who is present at a meeting of 

this Committee and who has an interest that is not a disclosable pecuniary 
interest but is an interest (whether held directly or indirectly) which is material 
and which conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the Corporation shall at 
the meeting and as soon as practicable after its commencement disclose the 
nature and extent of that interest.  

 
3.4  A Member who has disclosed an interest that is not a disclosable pecuniary 

interest but which is material and which conflicts or may conflict with the interests 
of the Corporation may, notwithstanding his or her interest, participate in the 
consideration or discussion and vote on the matter and be included for the 
purposes of a quorum at any meeting at which the matter is considered provided 
that:  
(a) the Member or a Connected Person does not have a Registrable Interest in 

the matter; and  

(b) his/ her interest does not give rise to a real danger of bias or is one which a 
member of the public aware of all the facts will regard as so significant that it 
is likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of how to act in the public 
interest.  

 
3.5 For the purposes of determining whether or not a Member has an interest which 

is material and which conflicts or may conflict with the interests of the 
Corporation the meanings given to the terms "Registrable Interest" and 
"Connected Person" are set out in the Corporation's Standing Orders (approved 
September 2012).  

 
3.6  A Member shall not be counted in the quorum present at a meeting in relation to 

a resolution upon which s/he is not entitled to vote (SO6.2).  
 
 

Page 2



4. FOR INFORMATION – Elected Members of Host Boroughs to which 
planning applications relate: 

 
Item 5 – Strand East Bridge - 16/00423/REM 

• Councillor Ken Clark, Elected Member, London Borough of Newham 

• Councillor Forhad Hussain, Elected Member, London Borough of Newham 
 

Item 6 – East Wick Phase 1 – 16/00530/NMA; 16/00520/REM; 16/00502/AOD 
 

• Councillor Ken Clark, Elected Member, London Borough of Newham 

• Councillor Forhad Hussain, Elected Member, London Borough of Newham 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
Minutes of the Meeting of the London Legacy Development Corporation 
Planning Decisions Committee 
 

Date: Tuesday 20 December 2016 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Rooms 1, 2 & 3, LLDC, Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet Road, 

London E20 1EJ 

 

 

PRESENT: 

 Philip Lewis (Chair) 

Lynda Addison OBE 

Nicholas Bitel 

Councillor Ken Clark 

Piers Gough CBE RA 

Councillor Forhad Hussain 

Lord Andrew Mawson OBE 

Councillor Geoff Taylor 

Councillor Terry Wheeler 

Dru Vesty MBE 

 

IN ATTENDANCE: Alex Savine, Head of Policy, LLDC 

 Josh Hackner, Planning Development Executive, LLDC 

Jamie Lockerbie, Legal Adviser Pinsent Masons 

Anne Ogundiya, Senior Planning Development Manager, LLDC 

Hilary Wrenn, Senior Planning Development Manager,  LLDC 

Eleanor Lloyd, Committee Secretary, GLA 

Zena Hassan, Assistant Committee Secretary, LLDC 

 

 

 

1 Updates, Order of Business and Requests to Speak (Item 1) 
 

1.1 The Chair stated that there were no update reports and the order of business would be as 

set out on the agenda.   

 

1.2 There had been no requests to speak, however representatives of the Applicants for Items 

5, 6 and 7, as listed below, were present to answer questions if required. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Item 5 – Cherry Park – 15/00358/OUT 

John Burton, Westfield 

Chris Goddard, DP9 

Robert Fourt, Gerald Eve 

Kieran Hobbs, Westfield 

 

• Item 6 – International Square – 16/00523/REM 

Steffan Rees, QUOD  

Helen Rodger, QUOD 

Helena Malcolm Lendlease  

Lesley Perez, GP 

 

• Item 7 -  Angel Lane - 16/00524/FUL 

Jon Watson, Westfield 

Jake Chalmers, YHA 

David Blair, TP Bennett 

Chris Gascoigne, DP9 

 

 

2 Apologies for Absence (Item 2) 
 

2.1 Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Rachel Blake, whose substitute 

Councillor Amina Ali was also unable to attend. 

 

 

3 Declarations of Interest (Item 3) 
 

3.1 The Committee received the report of the Director of Planning Policy and Decisions which 

set out, for the purposes of transparency, where a Member of the Committee was an 

elected Member of a Host Borough to which a planning application and/or other related 

matters were to be dealt with at the meeting.  

 

3.2 Resolved: 

 

3.2.1 That the following declarations of interest be noted: 

 

• Councillor Ken Clark, London Borough of Newham, Elected Member (Item 5 – 

Cherry Park – 15/00358/OUT), (Item 6 – International Square – 16/00523/REM) and 

(Item 7 - Angel Lane - 16/00524/FUL); and 

 

• Councillor Forhad Hussain, London Borough of Newham, Elected Member (Item 

5 – Cherry Park – 15/00358/OUT), (Item 6 – International Square – 16/00523/REM) 

and (Item 7 - Angel Lane - 16/00524/FUL). 

 

 

 

 

Page 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 22 November 2016  
(Item 4) 
 

4.1 The Committee received the minutes of the Planning Decisions Committee meeting held on 

22 November 2016. 

 

4.2 Resolved: 

 

4.2.1 That the minutes of the Committee meeting held on 22 November 2016 be signed as 

a correct record. 

 

 

5 Cherry Park - 15/00358/OUT (Item 5) 
 

5.1 The Committee received the report of the Senior Planning Development Manager. A 

presentation and update report were also provided. These are attached at Appendices 1 

and 2 to the minutes respectively and are published on the Legacy Corporation’s website 

here: 

 

 http://www.london.gov.uk/moderngovlldc/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=273&MId=5971&Ver=4  

 

5.2 A hybrid planning application for the redevelopment of the site known as Cherry Park had 

been submitted, comprising a full application for the development of a 10,902sqm Class A1 

retail anchor store as an extension to Westfield Stratford City and an outline application for 

residential floorspace of up to 105,000 sqm GEA (up to 1,224 units), commercial floorspace 

of up to 3,300 sqm GEA (Class B1/A3/D1) and ancillary amenity space and facilities. All 

reserved matters for the outline application would need to be submitted within five years of 

the application’s approval. 

 

5.3 The tower elements within the residential development would be 36, 26 and 20 storeys with 

the blocks facing Westfield Avenue and Monfichet Road to be 9, 10 and 11 storeys. A 

shared residential courtyard would be situated between the remaining blocks. The ground 

floor of the north eastern blocks would contain retail and commercial space, with the 

remaining blocks featuring duplex residential units to the ground and first floors, with 

protected garden space and entrances. 51% of the units would have two or more 

bedrooms. 

 
5.4 The main Cherry Park amenity space would be 0.27ha of publicly accessible landscaped 

park. Sunlight penetration to the residents’ courtyard area would be limited but this was 

considered acceptable as the adjacent public park would enjoy high levels of sunlight.  

While 55% of the residential units would be single aspect with a significant proportion of 

north east and north west facing rooms, none faced directly north and key daylighting 

standards would be met. 

 

5.5 The residential scheme would be entirely for private rent. Following negotiation, the 

applicant had made an offer of £30m  in lieu of onsite affordable housing provision, with 

£11.7m to be paid on initial implementation of the consent and £18.3m on approval of the 

first reserved matters application for the outline portion of the scheme. This was an 

equivalent value to provision of 19% affordable housing on site and would be reviewed at 

Page 7



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

fixed points within the development programme including in the event of a delay to 

commencement or a break in construction. Offsite provision would enable earlier delivery of 

affordable housing, but would reduce the overall Stratford City on-site affordable housing 

levels to 24%. 

 
5.6 The Committee discussed the affordable housing contribution. It was accepted that using 

developer contributions to deliver affordable homes offsite could result in more homes 

being built and earlier completions, in line with Mayoral priorities. However, many Members 

felt that the Legacy Corporation’s stated policy of creating mixed communities within the 

LLDC area would suffer if a precedent for entirely offsite provision were to be set, 

particularly in light of the limited numbers of sites remaining for development.  

 
5.7 Officers outlined the mechanism for allocation of the developer contribution. Organisations 

could bid for the funds to be used in individual developments, each of which would be 

governed by a separate Section106 (S106) agreement which may set out differing 

requirements. The heads of terms outlined in the report indicated that the priority for the 

developer contribution from Cherry Park would be to deliver affordable housing anywhere in 

the LLDC area or London Borough of Newham at the earliest opportunity.  

 
5.8 The issue of tenure was discussed. The section 106 agreement would require the 

residential units to be retained as private rental units for at least 15 years. If any unit was 

sold during this 15 year period a payment would become due to the LLDC to be used 

towards the provision of affordable housing. It was confirmed that the covenant would begin 

on the date each unit was first occupied.  Some Members felt the duration of the covenant 

to be insufficient. 

 

5.9 A Member raised concerns over access to Cherry Park Lane on Stadium event days, 

feeling that the stated intention to guarantee access for residents only could create a 

flashpoint for public disorder and a requirement for additional policing on match days, as 

well as proving problematic for emergency services access. Officers confirmed that a 

detailed management plan for event days would be required under the S106 agreement.  

Members requested an amendment to the first sub-paragraph of the 'Public Realm' section 

106 head of term (set out at paragraph 10.52 of the report) to replace the words ‘residents 

of Cherry Park’ with ‘the general public’ in the first clause, pertaining to Stadium event days. 

This was agreed. It was also agreed that the detailed drafting of this access provision would 

be based upon the wording of the section 106 agreement for the existing Stratford City 

outline planning permission. 

 
5.10 The Committee debated the merits of early housing delivery elsewhere using the developer 

contribution, which was expected to be forthcoming during 2017/18, versus the alternative 

10% onsite affordable rent offer made by the applicant, which would not be ready for 

occupation for approximately five to ten years. A minority of Members remained of the 

opinion that, on balance, it was preferable to mandate affordable housing provision onsite 

or ring-fence the contribution for provision within the LLDC area rather than further afield.  

 
5.11 The Committee recognised that negotiations with the applicant had reached a conclusion 

and that consideration of the application should not be delayed. The Chair moved that the 

recommendation be supported. 

 

Page 8



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.12 Resolved: (eight votes in favour and two votes against) 

 

That:  
 

5.12.1 Application 15/00358/OUT be approved subject to the satisfactory conclusion of a 

section 106 agreement based on the heads of terms included in the officer’s report at 

10.52, subject to the amendment set out at paragraph 5.9 of the minutes; and  

 

5.12.2 Authority be delegated to the Director of Planning Policy and Decisions to: 

a) Consider any direction from the Mayor of London and to make any 

consequential or necessary changes to the recommended conditions and/or 

informatives and/or recommended section 106 heads of terms as set out in the 

officer’s report;  

b) Finalise the recommended conditions and informatives (including relevant 

definitions and annexes) as set out in this report including such refinements, 

amendments, additions and/or deletions (including to dovetail with and where 

appropriate, reinforce, the final planning obligations to be contained in the 

section 106 legal agreement) as the Director of Planning Policy and Decisions 

considers reasonably necessary; 

c) Finalise the recommended legal agreement under section 106 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 and other enabling powers as set out in this report, 

including refining, adding to, amending and/or deleting the obligations detailed 

in the heads of terms set out in this report (including to dovetail with and where 

appropriate, reinforce the final conditions and informatives to be attached to 

the planning permission) as the Director of Planning Policy and Decisions 

considers reasonably necessary; and 

d) Complete the section 106 legal agreement referred to above and issue the 

planning permission.  

 

 

6 International Quarter London - International Square - 16/00523/REM 
(Item 6) 
 

6.1 The Committee received the report of the Planning Development Executive. A presentation 

and update report were also provided. These are attached at Appendices 3 and 4 to the 

minutes respectively and are published on the Legacy Corporation’s website here: 

 

 http://www.london.gov.uk/moderngovlldc/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=273&MId=5971&Ver=4  

 

6.2 The application sought reserved matters approval for public realm comprising International 

Square, Olympic Promenade and part of Secondary Road S2, collectively known as 

International Square within Zone 2 of Stratford City. The pavilion to be sited in International 

Square would be the subject of a separate application. 

 

6.3 The proposals conformed to the outline permission and the area of public realm to be 

provided exceeded the requirements of the accompanying S106 agreement. Large open 

spaces and a careful planting strategy would facilitate high volume pedestrian flow and the 

Page 9



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

scheme was considered by officers to integrate well with the ground floor levels of buildings 

S5 and S6 on the site.   

 
6.4 An additional consultation was underway in light of minor amendments submitted in the 

preceding few weeks, but no objections had been received.  Officers were asked to formally 

consult the Legacy Corporation’s Safety Advisory Group to establish potential views around 

movement of the public through the space. 

 

6.5 A Member requested an amendment to the definition of "Event Occurrence" set out at 3.1 

in the officer’s update report (Appendix 4) to read “any day” rather than “any time” in 

reference to the cumulative spectator threshold and at 4.2 in reference to condition 3, the 

word ‘notified’ should be removed for consistency with other conditions. 

 
6.6 The Committee discussed vehicle access. The applicant confirmed that the main space 

would be protected by bollards, with access restricted to service vehicles.  Taxis would be 

permitted to use the service road to the west of the site to pick up and drop off passengers 

only.  Couriers would also be able to use the road for deliveries. Cyclists would be required 

to dismount when entering the main square. Approval of an estate management plan would 

be required before the square could open to the public. 

 
6.7 Members commended the overall design of the scheme and the Chair moved that the 

recommendation be supported. 

 
6.8 Resolved: (Unanimously) 

6.8.1 That, subject to the amended conditions set out in the update report attached at 

Appendix 4 and further amendments to conditions set out at paragraph 6.5 of the 

minutes; 

(a) Full discharge of conditions B1, B8, B9 and Q1 attached to the Outline Consent 

in relation to reserved matters for International Square, Olympic Promenade and 

Secondary Road S2 (part) be granted; and  

(b) Partial discharge of conditions B10 and Q4 attached to the Outline Consent in 

relation to reserved matters for International Square, Olympic Promenade and 

Secondary Road S2 (part) be granted; and  

6.8.2 Following the conclusion of the consultation period and subject to no new material 

issues being received, authority be delegated to the Director of Planning Policy and 

Decisions to make any refinements, amendments, additions and/or deletions as the 

Director of Planning Policy and Decisions considers reasonably necessary.  

 

 

7 Angel Lane YHA - 16/00524/FUL (Item 7) 
 

7.1 The Committee received the report of the Senior Planning Development Manager. A 

presentation and update report were also provided. These are attached at Appendices 5 

and 6 to the minutes respectively and are published on the Legacy Corporation’s website 

here: 

 

 http://www.london.gov.uk/moderngovlldc/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=273&MId=5971&Ver=4  

Page 10



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.2 The application sought full planning permission to provide an office building with retail use 

at lower levels and a separate building to be occupied by the Youth Hostel Association at 

Great Eastern Lane, Stratford. The two buildings would be structurally independent and the 

14 storey youth hostel, containing 192 bedrooms, would constitute the first phase. The 

office element would be the second phase of development and would be 18 storeys high, 

providing 22,726sqm of B1(a) office  and 369sqm of retail  floorspace, to be accessed from 

the adjacent bridge at first floor and mezzanine levels. 

 

7.3 The proposals also included associated public realm works.  The design of the streetscape 

immediately in front of the buildings would be incorporated into the wider gyratory works to 

create a unified public realm.  The applicant would make a contribution to the costs. A 

coach drop off would be situated in front of the hostel and a full width service road to the 

rear would accommodate all service traffic. 

 

7.4 No objections had been received during the consultation. Officers had worked with the 

applicant to address concerns raised by London Borough of Newham and Transport for 

London (TfL) regarding the future station entrance, emergency access, taxi rank, public 

realm and coach parking. Both Newham and TfL were satisfied with the outcome subject to 

these matters being secured in the S106 agreement. 

 

7.5 The Quality Review Panel (QRP) had praised the applicant’s response to its previous 

comments. Officers were satisfied with the architectural expression of the buildings and the 

chosen materials, the cohesion of the ground and mezzanine floors and the activity levels 

of the frontage. 

 
7.6 A Member noted that the wording at 6.2 of the officer’s report, which mentioned maximum 

stay provisions and clarified that the hostel could not be used to accommodate homeless 

people or as an apart-hotel, was not reflected in the conditions. It was agreed that a 

condition would be added in respect of the maximum stay period. 

 

7.7 The Committee discussed accessibility. The applicant’s offer was that 5.2% of rooms (10 

rooms) at the youth hostel would be wheelchair accessible, falling short of the London Plan 

target of 10%. The applicant explained that this would meet projected demand based on 

their experience of demand at existing premises, but that the design of the building would 

permit conversion of additional rooms to be wheelchair accessible should this be required.  

A commitment was made to undertake a conversion if occupancy of the initial 10 accessible 

rooms exceeded 80% over two quarters. Members agreed that a 5.2% wheelchair 

accessible room provision along with the proposed monitoring and review mechanism was 

acceptable and that condition 7 would therefore need to be amended accordingly.to take 

account of Members acceptance. 

 

7.8 The management of the site was discussed and the applicant gave assurances that the 

exterior and public realm would be well maintained. Members then examined illustrative 

proposals for the advertising screen to be situated on the façade of the office building, 

facing Meridian Square. Officers explained that any screen would be attached to the 

building rather than a separate, free standing structure but that approval of the screen itself 

would be subject to a separate application for advertising consent.  

 

Page 11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.9 Members particularly welcomed the application from the Youth Hostel Association and 

hoped its presence would open up opportunities for people otherwise unlikely to stay in this 

part of London. 

 

7.10 Resolved (Unanimously) 

That: 

7.10.1 The application be approved for the reasons given in the report and planning 

permission be granted subject to the satisfactory completion of a legal agreement 

under s.106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and other enabling powers 

to secure the planning obligations set out in the recommended heads of terms which 

are set out in the officer’s report and update report (Appendix 6) and to the 

conditions set out in the officer’s report and update report, subject to the additions 

and amendments set out at paragraphs 7.6 and 7.7 respectively of the minutes; and 

7.10.2 Authority be delegated to the Director of Planning Policy and Decisions to: 

a) Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the officer’s report including 

such refinements, amendments, additions and/or deletions (including to 

dovetail with and where appropriate, reinforce, the final planning obligations to 

be contained in the section 106 legal agreement) as the Director of Planning 

Policy and Decisions considers reasonably necessary;  

b) Finalise the recommended legal agreement under section 106 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 and other enabling powers as set out in this report,  

including refining, adding to, amending and/or deleting the obligations detailed 

in the heads of terms set out in the report (including to dovetail with and where 

appropriate, reinforce the final conditions and informatives to be attached to 

the planning permission) as the Director of Planning Policy and Decisions 

considers reasonably necessary; and 

c) Complete the section 106 legal agreement referred to above and issue the 

planning permission. 

 

 

8 Decisions Made Under Delegated Authority (Item 8) 
 

8.1 The Committee received the report of the Director of Planning Policy and Decisions. 

 

8.2 A Member queried why an application for Neptune Wharf had been approved under 

delegated authority.  It was explained that this had been a Section 73 application to vary 

the extant outline permission. It was pointed out that the cumulative effect of the minor 

amendments requested could have represented a level of change that the Committee may 

wish to have reviewed.  Officers were asked to revisit the process for determining what 

should be presented to the Committee, in particular if the numbers of housing units were 

going to be varied, as this may affect affordable housing quotas. 

 

8.3 Resolved: 

 

8.3.1 That the report and attached appendix be noted.  

Page 12



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9 Any Urgent Business (Item 9) 
 

9.1 There was no urgent business. 

 

9.2 Officers were asked to produce a briefing for Members on what is being achieved as a 

result of off-site financial contributions for affordable housing delivery where this is being 

applied within and outside of the LLDC area, including the amount and type of affordable 

housing achieved.. This would provide Members with some benchmarking and guidance 

when considering the merits of onsite versus offsite provision and balancing this against the 

Legacy Corporation’s own guidance on the creation of mixed communities.  

 

9.3 The Chair expressed his gratitude to Lynda Addison OBE and Dru Vesty  MBE, who were 

stepping down from the Committee.  He emphasised the benefits that their knowledge and 

experience had brought to the Committee and the Legacy Corporation over the preceding 

four years. All Members of the Committee had very much enjoyed working with Lynda and 

Dru and wished them well in the future. 

 

 

10 Close of Meeting 
 

10.1 The meeting ended at 8:15pm. 

 

 

 

    

Chair   Date 

 

Contact Officer: Zena Hassan, Assistant Committee Secretary; Tel: 020 3288 8834; Email: 

planningcommittee@londonlegacy.co.uk 

 

 

 

 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Subject: Bridge 3 at Strand East, Sugar House Lane, Stratford E15; 
16/00423/REM 

Meeting date:  24 January 2017 

Report to: Planning Decisions Committee 

Report of: Russell Butchers, Planning Development Executive 

 
FOR DECISION  

This report will be considered in public 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. This report presents the planning assessment of a Reserved Matters application 
relating to pedestrian Bridge 3, which connects Strand East to Three Mills 
Green, across the Three Mills Wall River. The application is submitted in 
relation to Condition C1 (Reserved Matters) of hybrid planning permission 
reference 12/00336/LTGOUT/LBNM (the 2012 Permission).  

1.2. The main issues considered to impact this application are: 

• Overall conformity with the 2012 Permission and the parameter plans; and 

• Assessment against the reserved matters (Layout, Scale, Appearance and 
Landscaping).  

1.3. The principle of a pedestrian bridge has already been established by the 2012 
Permission and there have been no objections raised by consultees to the 
submitted details. Officers consider the bridge to demonstrate good design that 
will contribute positively to the Strand East development and the Three Mills 
Conservation Area. 

1.4. On the basis of the details submitted, it is recommended that the application is 
approved and condition C1 partially discharged insofar as it relates to Bridge 3.   

 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

The Committee is asked to: 

2.1 Approve the application for Reserved Matters for the construction of a 
pedestrian bridge (Bridge 3) over the Three Mills River pursuant to 
condition C1 (Reserved Matters – Layout, Scale, Appearance and 
Landscaping) of planning permission reference 12/00336/LTGOUT/LBNM 
dated 27 September 2012 (as amended) and subject to the planning 
conditions set out at section 13 of this report. 

 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 15



3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

3.1. The Section 106 (S106) agreement of the planning permission provides that 
failure to construct Bridge 3 prior to the first occupation of Plot R2 or R3 opens 
the applicant to the risk of an index-linked bridge overspend notice of £488,400 
towards capital works and £48,400 towards design fees.  

 

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1. None.  

 

Page 16



Site Plan 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 100050265 
 
Location: Land to the south of High Street Stratford, east of Sugar House 

Land and west of Three Mills River, Stratford E15.  

London Borough:  Newham 

Page 17



Proposal:  Application for the Approval of Reserved Matters for the 
construction of a pedestrian bridge (Bridge 3) over the Three Mills 
Wall River submitted pursuant to Condition C1 (Reserved Matters - 
Layout, Scale, Appearance and Landscaping) of Hybrid Planning 
Permission reference 12/00336/LTGOUT/LBNM dated 27 
September 2012 (as amended). 

Applicants:  Vastint 

Agent:          GL Hearn  

 

5. SITE & SURROUNDINGS  

 

 Figure 1: Bridge site location outlined in red 

 

5.1. The application site comprises an approximately 200sqm rectangular parcel of 
land that extends across the Three Mills Wall River, with the proposed bridge 
(‘Bridge 3’) connecting Strand East to Three Mills Green. The site is located 
along the eastern edge of the wider Strand East site, west of Three Mills Green, 
north of Three Mills Moorings and adjacent to the south-eastern corner of Plot 
R2. There is an existing towpath bridge connecting Three Mills Green to 
Stratford to the north of the site.  

5.2. Ground levels of the site are approximately 6.0m AOD at the Strand East side 
and 5.7m AOD at Three Mills Green.  

5.3. Bridge 3 is located within the Three Mills Conservation Area, and the Sugar 
House Lane Conservation Area is located to the north-west of the application 
site.  

5.4. The site is shown at Appendix 1 and 2 (Site location and Site plan). 

 

Page 18



6. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 

 Sugar House Lane (Strand East) 

6.1. On 27 September 2012 the London Thames Gateway Development 
Corporation granted planning permission (12/00336/LTGOUT) for a hybrid 
planning application for comprehensive mixed use development comprising: 

 Detailed application 

• demolition of existing buildings where stated; 

• 8 residential units (C3); 

• 300sqm financial and professional services (A2); 500sqm public house/bar 
(A4); 2,620sqm office and workshops/non-residential institution (B1/D1); 
8,170sqm offices (B1); 

• public square; 

• access including limited emergency services access along Three Mills Wall 
River and east-west along Sugar House Lane; 

• 28 parking spaces; 

• hard and soft landscaping. 
 

 Outline application (all matters reserved except access) 

• demolition of buildings where stated; 

• 1192 residential units (C3) of which 10% of properties wheelchair accessible; 

• 12,593sqm flexible uses including retail (A1), financial and professional 
services (A2), restaurants, cafes and bars (A3/4), offices and workshops 
(B1), non-residential institution (D1) and assembly and leisure (D2); 

• 33,950sqm offices and workshops (B1); 

• 22,500sqm (350 bedroom) hotel (C1); 

• pedestrian bridge across Three Mills Wall River; 

• a riverside park; 

• car, motorcycle and bicycle parking; 

• servicing and ancillary highway works. 
 

6.2. The 2012 Permission includes a planning condition that requires compliance 
with the Design Code submitted in support of the original planning application. 

6.3. There is a S106 Agreement attached to the 2012 planning permission which 
requires the applicant to obtain planning permission for and to construct a 
pedestrian and cycle bridge across the Three Mills Wall River. In the event that 
the bridge is not constructed the developer is required to pay an indexed sum of 
£488,400 to LLDC and to enable to bridge to be constructed.  

 Strand East Plot MU2, R6, MU1, R1 and Public Realm Infrastructure 

6.4. On 28 September 2015, 24 November 2015, 22 February 2016, May 2016, 26 
July 2016 and 22 November 2016 the Planning Decisions Committee resolved 
to grant/delegate authority to grant planning permission for Plot MU2, Plot R6, 
Plot MU1, Plot R1, Public Realm Infrastructure, Plot MU5 and Plot R3 reserved 
matters respectively. The following plots are subject to reserved matters 
applications which have been submitted and are currently under consideration: 
R2, R4, MU5, R4, R8 and MU3. 

6.5. A reserved matters application for Plot R2 (16/00440/REM) has been submitted 
for the construction of two urban blocks and central mews comprising 
approximately 211 residential units and 66sqm commercial floorspace. The 
riverside block of Plot R2 will be the closest building to the bridge, and current 

Page 19



proposals include a five storey block with taller accents at each end. The bridge 
lines up with the southern accent. The application is currently being assessed. 

Three Mills Moorings applications  

6.6. An application for Approval of Details (15/00535/AOD) was submitted that 
seeks to discharge condition C3a (Interim Mooring Facilities). It is currently 
awaiting determination. 

6.7. On 7 September 2016 Full Planning Permission (16/00285/FUL) was granted 
for the erection of floating pontoons and associated structures to provide 
facilities ancillary to the residential moorings on the Three Mills Wall River. 

6.8. On 30 November 2016 full planning permission (16/00439/FUL) was granted for 
the relocation of the existing Three Mills Moorings ramp (and associated 
structures) to enable direct access to the moorings from the proposed Moorers’ 
garden. It is currently awaiting determination. 

6.9. An application for Approval of Details (16/00551/AOD) has been submitted that 
seeks to fully discharge condition C3 (Three Mills Moorings facilities design, 
location and implementation strategy) of planning permission reference 
12/00336/LTGOUT dated 27 September 2012 (as amended). The application is 
being considered. 

 

7. APPLICATION PROPOSAL 

7.1. The proposed development comprises a reserved matters application for the 
construction of a pedestrian bridge across the Three Mills Wall River, 
connecting the Strand East development with Three Mills Green.  

7.2. The application is submitted pursuant to Condition C1 of hybrid planning 
permission 12/00336/LTGOUT/LBNM (‘the 2012 Permission’). This application 
seeks approval of the reserved matters (Layout, Scale, Appearance, 
Landscaping) for the pedestrian bridge.  

7.3. The curved bridge spans 29.5m across the Three Mills Wall River with a total 
width of 2.7m, (2m internally; minimum 1.8m between the handrails). The bridge 
structure comprises two concrete abutments (with exposed aggregate) which 
act as cantilevers on either side of the river. The central element of the bridge is 
constructed of glued laminated timber (‘glulam’) which spans between the two 
concrete abutments. The surface of the footway is to be formed of resin bonded 
gravel, to match surfacing elsewhere within Strand East. The proposed bridge is 
step-free and its curved design has been informed by LLDC’s Inclusive Design 
Standards.  

7.4. The bridge design includes a metal handrail that is set into the balustrade and 
runs the length of the bridge. The materials and colour of the metal railings 
contrast with the timber and concrete elements of the bridge.  

7.5. Bridge lighting will be integrated into the handrail design, with continuous LED 
downlights illuminating the bridge deck. The bridge span will be lit from LED 
spotlights at the riverbank.  

7.6. This application includes the design of the surrounding public realm, insofar as 
it falls within the application boundary.  

7.7. For the avoidance of doubt, this application does not propose any new buildings 
or internal floorspace. 

  

Page 20



8. POLICIES & GUIDANCE 

National Planning Policy 

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

8.1. The policies in the NPPF are material considerations in the determination of 
applications. The NPPF states that due weight should be given to relevant local 
plan policies according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF. The 
principle of sustainable development permeates the NPPF. The Framework 
makes clear that local authorities should be positive and proactive in 
encouraging sustainable growth and addressing barriers to investment. The 
NPPF should be read in conjunction with the Planning Practice Guidance, a 
web-based resource for all users of the planning system. This describes the 
importance of good design and how this can be achieved through planning 
decisions. 

8.2. The following NPPF policies are relevant to this planning application:  

Section 4 – Promoting sustainable transport  

Section 7 – Requiring good design  

Section 8 – Promoting healthy communities  

Section 12 – Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 

Regional Planning Policy 

8.3. London Plan (March 2016) 

Policy 2.4  The 2012 Games and their legacy 
Policy 2.9  Inner London 
Policy 2.13  Opportunity Areas and Intensification Areas 
Policy 5.3 Sustainable design and construction 
Policy 6.9  Cycling 
Policy 6.10  Walking 
Policy 7.2  An inclusive environment 
Policy 7.3  Designing out crime 
Policy 7.4  Local character 
Policy 7.5  Public realm   
Policy 7.6  Architecture 
Policy 7.8 Heritage assets and archaeology 
Policy 7.19 Biodiversity and access to nature 
Policy 7.30 London’s canals and other rivers and waterspaces 

Local Planning Policy 

8.4. LLDC Local Plan (2015)  

Policy SD.1 Sustainable Development 
Policy SP.3 Integrating the build and natural environment 
Policy B.1 Building a strong and diverse economy  
Policy BN.1 Responding to place 
Policy BN.2 Creating distinctive waterway environments 
Policy BN.3 Maximising biodiversity  
Policy BN.5 Requiring inclusive design 
Policy BN.16 Preserving or enhancing heritage assets 
Policy T.4 Managing development and its transport impacts 
Policy T.9 Providing for pedestrians and cyclists 
Policy S.4 Sustainable design and construction 
Policy 4.2 Bringing forward new connections to serve new development  

Page 21



Policy 4.4 Protecting and enhancing heritage assets at Three Mills Island 
and Sugar House Lane 

SA4.2   Site Allocation 4.2: Sugar House Line 
 
 The site falls within the Bow Back Waters Site of Importance for Nature 

Conservation, as depicted within the Local Plan Policies Map. 
 
 Site Allocation SA4.2  - Sugar House Lane 

8.5. The site allocation proposes “a new medium-density, mixed-use area of 
business (including cultural and creative) and local retail space focussed in the 
northern and southern part of the site; new homes with a significant number of 
family homes; Local Open Space, play space and public realm. A new all 
movements junction to enable access to the area and new and enhanced 
bridges to link the area to surrounding communities will be required alongside 
development. Proposals for development above 15m above ground level will 
only be acceptable subject to the provisions of Policy BN.10.”   

8.6. The relevant supporting development principles refer to: 

• The area adopting a genuinely mixed use character retaining a strong 
employment focus that includes a base for creative industries and 
introduces a new residential community served by a range of local 
amenities and high quality public transport, pedestrian and cycle 
connections. 

• The area will be defined by its unique natural environmental and historic 
industrial legacy that includes extensive canal and river frontage, robust yet 
adaptable buildings and intricate yards and passages; 

• The historic character of the area should be celebrated by weaving high-
quality new development into the historic fabric; 

• High quality public, communal and private amenity spaces that create a 
sense of place and meet the needs of residents, workers and visitors; 

• Preserve or enhance the Sugar House Lane Conservation Area. 

Other Relevant Guidance Considerations 

8.7.  LLDC Inclusive Design Standards  

Standard IDS03: Bridges for Pedestrian Use 

8.8. Three Mills Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Proposals 
2006  

The Three Mills Conservation Area was designated by the London Borough of 
Newham in November 1971. Elements of the Conservation Area’s summary of 
special interest that are relevant to this proposal include: 

• The tidal river channels of the River Lea, including the Channelsea River, 
Abbey Creek and Bow Creek; 

• The ‘Greenway’ outfall sewer and the bridge over Channelsea River; 

• Narrow boats moored on the Three Mills Wall River; 

• Other waterways in the area with their associated footpaths.  

 

 

Page 22



9. CONSULTATION 

9.1. The application was advertised by way of 25 neighbour letters, two site notices 
dated 25 August 2016, and a press notice in the Newham Recorder dated 31 
August 2016. Letters were also sent to statutory and non-statutory consultees.  

 Representations from members of the public 

9.2. No responses were received from members of the public. 

 Representations from statutory and non-statutory consultees  

9.3. The parties consulted are listed below; those who responded to the consultation 
are shown in bold.  

LLDC Inclusive Design Officer 

LLDC Design  

Three Mills Mooring Association 

Historic England 

Lee Valley Regional Park Authority 

Canal & River Trust 

Environment Agency 

London Borough of Newham 

Transport for London 

Metropolitan Police 

Three Mills Mooring Association 

London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority 

LLDC Quality Review Panel 

 LLDC Inclusive Design Officer 

9.4. Reviewed the application and advised that it was acceptable.  

 Historic England  

9.5. Provided no specific comments on the proposal. Advised that the application 
should be determined in accordance with national and local policy guidance, 
and on the basis of any specialist conservation advise received.  

 Lee Valley Regional Park Authority (LVRPA) 

9.6. LVRPA advised that they had no objections to the proposed details of the 
bridge and have requested that two informatives are included if the application 
is approved.  

9.7. In their appraisal LVRPA stated that “The design of the proposed bridge is 
acceptable. This has been carefully considered to comply with the requirements 
for clearance over the waterway, with materials to respect the Sugar House 
Lane Conservation Area and lighting to minimise impact on flights paths. 
However, related matters including the consents of the Authority, as landlord 
and the Secretary of State for the release of land for the bridges eastern 
abutment and the need for agreement over a sum for commuted payments to 
support the maintenance of the Three Mills Green need to be completed to the 
satisfaction of the Authority in advance of works proceeding.  

Page 23



9.8. LVRPA have requested informatives advising that permission is required by the 
Authority as landlord and the applicant will be required to pay a commuted sum 
for the maintenance of Three Mills Green.  

 Transport for London (TfL) 

9.9. TfL did not raise any objection to the proposal and advised that it was 
established at outline stage that Bridge 3 would not need to formally 
accommodate cyclists, and that there are alternative routes for cyclists in the 
vicinity to access the site.  

 London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority (LFEPA) 

9.10. LFEPA reviewed the application and advised that they had no comments to 
make.  

 Canal & River Trust (CRT) 

9.11. CRT advised that they consider design of the bridge to be elegant and well 
considered but have raised issues concerning their role as landowner (of the 
waterway), the structural integrity of the waterway wall, and lighting of the 
waterway.  

9.12. With respect to CRT’s role as landowner, they advised that a legal agreement 
will be required for the bridge as it oversails their land/waterspace. An 
informative to this effect has been requested.  

9.13. CRT also advised that the applicant will need to satisfy themselves and CRT 
that the existing waterway wall is capable of supporting the concrete 
cantilevered bridge abutments and any associated increased loadings as a 
result of the bridge, as well as any loadings associated with the crane used 
during construction. This will be assessed by the Trust as part of their technical 
review as part of the landowner consent process but CRT also suggested that it 
could be included as a planning condition. An informative has been requested 
regarding a risk assessment and method statement for the proposed works.  

9.14. The waterway is used as a feeding corridor by bats and there should be no light 
spill onto the waterway and the lighting at water level should be below 3 Lux. 
CRT have requested a condition requiring that full lighting details be provided 
prior to any development on the site.  

LLDC Quality Review Panel  

9.15. The application was presented to the Quality Review Panel (QRP) on 8 
September 2016. QRP broadly supported the design of Bridge 3 and 
considered the concept of an arched glulam bridge, resting on concrete 
abutments, with metal railings, to have the potential to be successful. The panel 
recommended that that further thought should be given to the detailed design of 
the railings and abutments. The applicant has given consideration to the 
suggested design changes and has made detailed design changes with respect 
to the railings but has not made any changes to the abutments. This is 
assessed further at part 10.27 of this report.      

 

10. ASSESSMENT OF PLANNING ISSUES  

 Principle of Development 

10.1. The principle of the comprehensive mixed use development at Strand 
East/Sugar House Lane was approved in the 2012 Permission. This planning 
permission established the location, scale, massing, type, access and amount 
of development to be delivered within the boundaries of the Details and Outline 

Page 24



Planning Areas. The 2012 Permission subdivided that land at Sugar House 
Lane into thirteen different plots, including eight predominantly residential plots 
and five mixed use plots.  

10.2. The 2012 Permission approved the construction of a pedestrian bridge across 
Three Mills Wall River with the detailed design to be subject to the submission 
of reserved matters. The location of Bridge 3 has been moved approximately 
2.2m to the north to improve levels of privacy for the occupiers of the Three 
Mills Moorings and due to the location of existing posts within the waterway 
associated with the moorings. Previously the bridge was located approximately 
1.05m away from the pontoon and this has been increased to 3.25m. However 
bridge specifications within the S106 indicate that the precise layout of the 
bridge was subject to detailed design and the revised location is acceptable and 
is within the parameters of the 2012 Permission.  

10.3. It is noted that Bridge 3 is a pedestrian bridge, and not a shared pedestrian and 
cycle bridge. This is in line with the 2012 Permission and pre-submission 
discussions with the Local Planning Authority. It is not considered necessary for 
this bridge to constitute a formal cycle route given the nearby cycle routes which 
include the Stratford High Street ‘Cycle Superhighway 2’ and along Sugar 
House Lane and Hunts Lane. Although Bridge 3 will not be a formal cycle 
bridge, cyclists are able to use the bridge if they choose to dismount. TfL are 
supportive of Bridge 3 being a pedestrian bridge only.  

10.4. LLDC Local Plan Policy 4.2 and Site Allocation SA4.2 both support the delivery 
of a new pedestrian bridge in this location.  

10.5. The principle of a pedestrian bridge in this location has, therefore, already been 
established and accords with the 2012 Permission and LLDC Local Plan Policy 
4.4 and Site Allocation 4.2.   

 Assessment of the Reserved Matters and Compliance with the 2012 
Permission, Parameter Plans and the Design Code 

 Parameter Plans  

10.6. The parameter plans from the 2012 Permission set out the building lines, 
maximum storey heights, land uses at ground floor, first and upper floors, levels 
strategy, underground car parking strategy and the characterisation of open 
space.  

10.7. This application relates only to the pedestrian Bridge 3 and there are no new 
buildings or floor space proposed. The proposal therefore does not conflict with 
the parameter plans relating to building lines, maximum storey heights, land use 
or underground car parking. The characterisation of open space parameter plan 
sets out that the bridge should be publicly accessible, and the proposal is fully 
compliant in this regard and it is also consistent with the ground level strategy 
parameter plan.  

10.8. Bridge 3 is not included within the Public Access Plan that is included within the 
S106 agreement and it is unclear whether public access to the bridge is 
enshrined through a legal agreement. Clarification on this point is being sought 
from the applicant and their response will be presented to the Committee.  

 Design Code 

10.9. The Design Code from the 2012 Permission does not specifically refer to the 
design of the approved pedestrian Bridge 3 across Three Mills Wall River. The 
Code does make reference to the bridge at Section 4.0 Landscaping in relation 

Page 25



to the shared surfaces providing “attractive green links” to the bridge. The 
Design Codes states that in general buildings should be made from 
predominantly tactile, solid and durable materials, including concrete and 
timber. Overall it is considered that the materials and design of the bridge have 
been informed by the Design Code and a further assessment of the appearance 
of the bridge is included from paragraphs 10.22 to 10.34 of this report. 

 Conditions of the 2012 Permission  

10.10. In addition to the scheme’s compliance with the parameters of the 2012 
Permission, the development has to adhere to a number of compliance 
conditions.  

10.11. As the proposal is for a bridge (i.e. a structure) and not a new building, many of 
these conditions (i.e. car parking, land use, wheelchair accessible units) are not 
relevant to this proposal. The conditions of the 2012 Permission that are 
relevant to the proposal are conditions A3, A5, A13, A14 and A20.  

10.12. Condition A3 requires the submission of reserved matters within the outline 
planning application area for approval before the expiration of five years from 
the date of the decision (i.e. 27 September 2017). Most parts of Bridge 3 fall 
outside of any of the plots subject to condition A3, however the western landing 
falls within Plot R2. In any case, the condition has been complied with as the 
application has been submitted prior to 27 September 2017.  

10.13. Condition A5 requires all submissions to demonstrate compliance with the 
principles and parameters set out in the Design Code. As set out in paragraph 
10.9 above, the design of Bridge 3 is not specifically referenced within the 
Design Code, however its overall design and the use of concrete and timber 
materials is consistent with the Design Code.   

10.14. Conditions A13 and A14 relate to open space and amenity space for the Strand 
East development. The allocation of open space and amenity space has been 
thoroughly discussed in the approved Public Realm and Infrastructure RMA 
(15/00239/REM) and the Bridge proposal is in full accordance with these 
conditions. 

10.15. Condition A20 requires development to be carried out in accordance with the 
approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and Drainage Strategy and the 
mitigation measures contained within condition A20. The applicant has 
confirmed that Bridge 3 fully accords with the mitigation measures listed in 
Condition A20, the FRA and Drainage Strategy. Specific details regarding the 
Drainage Strategy for the wider development site are contained within the 
Public Realm and Infrastructure RMA which was approved under reference 
15/00239/REM.  

 Reserved Matters  

10.16. The matters reserved by Condition C1 of the 2012 Permission are: 

• Layout; 

• Scale; 

• Appearance; 

• Landscaping.  

 

 

Page 26



 Layout  

10.17. Parameter Plan PP-1-101 rev B of the 2012 Permission sets out the building 
forms and lines and sets out the location for each building across the Strand 
East site. This drawing also indicates the location of a bridge crossing.  

10.18. The bridge has been shifted approximately 2.2m north of the location shown in 
the 2012 Permission in order to improve levels of privacy to the residential 
moorings at Three Mills. It is noted that the specifications for Bridge 3 that are 
set out in Appendix 4 of the S106 agreement state that the bridge layout is 
indicative and subject to detailed design and the proposed layout and location 
of the bridge is considered to accord with the 2012 Permission and the 
accompanying S106. The specifications for Bridge 3 contained within the S106 
agreement can be found at Appendix 3 of this report.  

Scale 

10.19.  The 2012 Permission established both the footprint of the blocks and the 
maximum buildings heights in terms of the number storeys permitted. These 
parameters, together with the number of dwellings permitted, determine the 
scale of the wider development.  

10.20. This application does not propose any new buildings or floorspace and the 
proposed bridge is fully compliant with the parameter plan in this respect.   

10.21. Appendix 4 of the S106 agreement sets out the specifications for Bridge 3. This 
drawing is indicative only and the drawing notes state that the layout is subject 
to detailed design. The proposed bridge generally conforms to the Appendix 4 
drawing, although the width of the bridge has been reduced from 3m to 2.7m for 
structural reasons and to minimise its impact upon the waterway and the 
residential occupiers at Three Mills Moorings. The specifications set out in 
Appendix 4 are not entirely prescriptive and the slightly reduced width of the 
bridge is consistent with the 2012 Permission.   

Appearance 

 

Figure 2: Appearance of bridge and the four external design features  

Page 27



10.22. Bridge 3 comprises four main design features; the concrete abutments, timber 
glulam span, metal handrails and a resin bonded gravel surface. The bridge 
spans 29.5m across the Three Mills Wall River, using the two concrete 
abutments as cantilevers with the timber glulam section forming a beam 
between the two concrete abutments. A metal handrail is set inboard of the 
balustrade and has been intentionally differentiated from the main bridge 
structure, with the contrast in materials deliberately exaggerating the slender 
curve of the bridge. This simple approach has resulted in an elegant and 
unobtrusive bridge, which has remained as slender as possible.  

10.23. The complete spanning of the bridge across the river has allowed the waterway 
below to be uninterrupted by any additional structural elements. The curve of 
the bridge allows for a generous passageway beneath for passing vessels and 
does not impede the flood defence level.   

10.24.  The materials used in the bridge include sand blasted pre-cast concrete, with 
expanded aggregate to match the riverwall capping, glue laminated larch 
timber, resin bonded gravel surfacing to the bridge deck with the aggregate to 
match the granite setts and bespoke steel railings coloured black-grey. The 
colour and finish of these railings will match the railings that are to be used 
along the adjacent riverwall.  

10.25. The material palette has been influenced by the industrial heritage of the Sugar 
House Lane peninsula, which also formed the basis of the design of the 
surrounding public realm, which was approved under reference 15/00239/REM. 
The use of timber and concrete responds to similar materials found within the 
Three Mills Conservation Area and other parts of Strand East, metal railings are 
proposed along the water edge within Strand East.  

10.26. Condition C2 of the 2012 Permission requires the submission of materials 
samples in relation to the relevant Plots, but does not require the submission of 
any materials details in relation to Bridge 3. The materials proposed for the 
construction of the bridge (glulam, concrete abutments, railings) are considered 
to be acceptable and the submission of further details is not considered to be 
necessary. However, care needs to be taken to ensure that the adjoining areas 
of landscaping that are within the red edged site tie into both Plot R2 and Three 
Mills Green. A condition is proposed requiring the submission of a detailed 
drawing showing how the landscape finishes adjacent to the bridge structure 
will tie into the adjoining areas of landscaping for Plot R2 and Three Mills 
Green.  

10.27. The proposed scheme was presented before the LLDC Quality Review Panel 
who supported the concept of an arched glulam bridge, resting on concrete 
abutments and with metal railings. The design of the join between the glulam 
and the concrete abutments is a vertical joint and the Panel encouraged the 
applicant to consider creating a nib between these two elements to give the 
visual appearance of the concrete abutments supporting the glulam. The 
applicant has chosen not to incorporate this element of the Panel’s comments 
because the concrete abutments do not actually support the glulam bridge 
deck. It is considered that the vertical join between concrete abutments and the 
glulam does not significantly detract from the appearance of the bridge to the 
degree that the design would be so unacceptable as to constitute a reason to 
refuse the application.  

10.28. LLDC Local Plan Policies BN2 and BN3 seek to ensure that developments do 
not have an adverse impact upon the waterway environments, that they 
maximise biodiversity and conserve and promote Sites of Importance for Nature 
Conservation (SINC). There is a potential impact upon the waterway 

Page 28



environment, biodiversity and the Bow Back Rivers SINC as a result of the 
bridge lighting scheme.  

10.29. Lighting of the bridge deck will be incorporated into the handrail design, with a 
continuous LED downlight strip set into the handrail. The Canal & River Trust 
(CRT) have requested that the illumination at the water level is no more than 3 
Lux, to ensure that the impact of the lighting upon biodiversity is mitigated. The 
applicant has undertaken a lighting analysis that demonstrates that the average 
lighting level at water level would be 1.59 Lux. Notwithstanding this, a condition 
is proposed requiring that Lux levels at water level do not exceed 3 Lux and this 
will ensure that the impact of the lighting scheme upon the waterway, SINC and 
associated biodiversity is managed.   

10.30. The bridge structure itself will be illuminated by LED spotlights from the 
riverbank, which will accentuate the curve of the bridge at night. The east 
landing of the bridge will be illuminated by the existing lamp within Three Mills 
Green and the west landing by ambient public realm lighting integrated into the 
landscaping and plot R2.   

10.31. CRT commented that a planning condition could be imposed regarding the 
structural stability of the waterway wall, to confirm that the wall would be 
capable of accommodating the additional loading, including loading during the 
construction process. The National Planning Practice Guidance highlights that 
when dealing with land that might be unstable, the planning system works 
alongside other regimes such as the building regulations. Officers consider that 
such technical reviews will be required as part of the consenting process by the 
London Borough of Newham Highways and through CRT’s own processes. On 
that basis, a condition is not considered to be necessary to make the 
development acceptable.    

10.32. In terms of accessibility, consultations were carried out with LLDC’s 
Accessibility and Inclusive Design Officer, who reviewed the application is a 
satisfied with the proposal. The bridge design meets the LLDC Inclusive Design 
Standards (ISD03) and British Standard BS8300, which is the code of practice 
for the design of buildings and their ability to meet the requirements of disabled 
people. The western landing and central sections of the bridge are flat with the 
remaining sections at a 1:21 gradient.  

10.33. The application site is situated within the Three Mills Conservation Area and 
adjacent to the Sugar House Lane Conservation Area. Therefore, the impacts of 
the proposal have been considered in accordance with paragraphs 131-132 and 
137 of the NPPF, policy 7.8 of the London Plan and policy BN16 of the Local 
Plan regarding development and impact on a heritage asset or its setting. The 
design of the bridge and the materials used respond positively to the Three Mills 
Conservation Area and are reflective of its industrial character. Opening up 
public access to the conservation area is considered to be of benefit. Overall it 
is considered that the scale, design and appearance of the bridge would 
enhance the character and appearance of the Three Mills Conservation Area 
and as such accord with the NPPF, London Plan policy 7.8 and policy BN16 of 
the Local Plan.   

10.34. Overall, officers consider the appearance of the bridge to well considered and 
attractive and consistent with the 2012 Permission and the forthcoming 
development at Strand East. The design of the bridge is considered to meet the 
objectives of the 2012 Permission Design Code, Condition C1 of the 2012 
Permission, the relevant policies of the London Plan and LLDC Local Plan, 
LLDC’s Inclusive Design Standards and the Three Mills Conservation Area 
Character Appraisal.  

Page 29



 Landscaping 

10.35. The surfaces to be used in the bridge deck comprise smooth granite sets and 
resin bonded gravel. No other soft or hard landscaping is proposed as part of 
this proposal. The landscaping finish proposed for R2 is included with RMA 
reference 16/00440/REM, which is currently under consideration by LLDC. It is 
important to note that the bridge has been designed in conjunction with the 
landscaping for Plot R2 and that there is continuity and consistency between 
the two applications. The design of the bridge and its materials has been 
chosen to seamlessly integrate with the landscaping for Plot R2.  

10.36. It is noted that the landscaping proposals for Plot R2 are currently the subject of 
a reserved matters application. To ensure that the landscaping materials for the 
bridge landing tie in with the landscaping materials that are approved in relation 
to the Plot R2 RMA, a condition is proposed requiring that materials samples 
are submitted. This will also ensure that the landscaping materials used in 
bridge landing at Three Mills Green appropriately tie in with the existing 
landscape materials used there.   

 

11. HUMAN RIGHTS & EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

11.1. Members should take account of the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 
as they relate to the application and the conflicting interests of the Applicants 
and any third party opposing the application in reaching their decisions. The 
provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. In particular, 
Article 6 (1), of the European Convention on Human Rights in relation civil rights 
and a fair hearing; Article 8 of the ECHR in relation to the right to respect for 
private and family life and Article 1 Protocol 1 of the ECHR in relation to the 
protection of property have all been taken into account 

11.2. In addition the Equality Act 2010 provides protection from discrimination in 
respect of certain protected characteristics namely: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion, or beliefs and sex and 
sexual orientation. It places the Local Planning Authority under a legal duty to 
have due regard to the advancement of equality in the exercise of its powers 
including planning powers. Officers have taken this into account in the 
assessment of the application and Members must be mindful of this duty inter 
alia when determining all planning applications. In particular Members must pay 
due regard to the need to: 

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act; 

• Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

 and; 

• Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

11.3. Officers are satisfied that the application material and Officers’ assessment has 
taken into account these issues. 

 

 

Page 30



12. CONCLUSION  

12.1. The proposed bridge conforms with the requirements of the 2012 Permission 
(including the S106 agreement), the Design Code, Parameter Plans and 
adopted planning policy. The layout, scale, appearance and landscaping of 
Bridge 3 are acceptable and the bridge is considered to represent high quality 
design.  

12.2. It is therefore recommended that reserved matters consent is granted for the 
submitted Reserved Matters, subject to the conditions below.  

 

13. PLANNING CONDITIONS 

13.1. PARTIAL discharge of condition C1, insofar as it relates to Bridge 3 of the 
Strand East development.  

 

CONDITIONS 

1. Works in accordance with approved details  

 Unless minor variations have been agreed by the Local Planning Authority and 
to the extent that it does not deviate from this permission, the development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the following drawings and documents: 

 Drawings 

• B3-AML-ARC-P-402 (Timber/Concrete Junction Detail) 

• B3-AML-ARC-P-201 Rev A (Proposed Section North) 

• B3-AML-ARC-P-401 (Balustrade with lighting detail)  

• B3-AML-ARC-P-101 Rev A (Site Plan) 

• B3-AML-ARC-P-301 Rev A (Proposed elevation north)    

• B3-AML-ARC-P-001 (Existing Location Plan) 

• B3-AML-ARC-P-002 (Existing Location Plan – Masterplan Context)  

Documents 

• Planning Statement - August 2016 

• Design and Access Statement Revision A – December 2016 

 and the description of development contained in the application and any other 
plans, drawings, documents, details, schemes or strategies which have been 
approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to these conditions.  

 Reason: To ensure that all works are properly implemented and retained. 

2. Material Samples  

 Full details of the materials to be used in the areas of hard surfacing and 
landscaping that adjoin Plot R2 and Three Mills Green shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to any superstructure 
works commencing on site. The development shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with any such approval given.  

 Reason: In order to ensure that the surfacing and landscaping for the 
development appropriately corresponds to the adjoining sites and the preserve 
the character and appearance of the Three Mills Conservation Area.  

Page 31



3. Lighting levels  

 Light levels generated by the architectural lighting of the bridge hereby 
approved as measured at the surface of the Three Mills Wall River shall not 
exceed 3 Lux at any time. There shall be no fixed external lights other than 
those contained within the Design and Access Statement Revision A.  

Reason: In order to minimise the effect of the lighting on adjoining habitat, 
protected species and to minimise the impact of the development on the 
waterway setting.  

 Condition Informative: The Design and Access Statement Revision A indicates 
that the lighting at water level will not exceed 1.59 Lux. The lighting level of 3 
Lux contained within the condition is a maximum level, and the applicant should 
strive to achieve the lower level of 1.59 Lux that has been indicated.  

 

INFORMATIVES 

 Canal & River Trust Informatives 

1. The applicant/developer should refer to the current “Code of Practice for Works 
affecting the Canal & River Trust” to ensure that any necessary consents are 
obtained (https://canalrivertrust.org.uk/business-and-trade/undertaking-works-
on-our-property-and-our-code-of-practice). 

2. The applicant/developer is advised that access over the waterway requires 
written consent from the Canal & River Trust, and they should contact the Canal 
& River Trust’s Estates regarding the required agreement. 

3. The applicant is advised that any drainage from the proposed structure into the 
waterway will require consent from the Canal & River Trust, and they should 
contact the Canal & River Trust’s Utilities team: 

nick.pogson@canalrivertrust.org.uk 

 Lee Valley Regional Park Authority Informatives 

4. On the assumption that approval is given for the works the applicant should be 
informed that the permission the Lee Valley Regional Park Authority, as 
landlord, is required before works can proceed on the eastern bank of the Three 
Mills Wall River.  

5. The Lee Valley Regional Park Authority will inform the applicant of the need for 
agreement on the amount of commuted payments required to be paid to the 
Park Authority to maintain Three Mills Green. 

 Positive and Proactive Statement  

6. In accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and with Article 35 
of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) Order 2015 (as amended), the following statement explains how the 
LLDC as Local Planning Authority has worked with the applicant in a positive 
and proactive manner based on seeking solutions to problems arising in relation 
to dealing with this planning application: 

 Following submission of the planning application to LLDC, the local planning 
authority continued to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive 
manner.  The planning application complies with planning policy as stated 
above and was determined in a timely manner. 

 The applicant has been kept informed of the progress of the application and has 
been given the opportunity to respond to and address any problems arising. 

Page 32



APPENDICES  
 
Appendix 1 – Location Plan 
Appendix 2 – Site Plan 
Appendix 3 – Bridge 3 specifications drawing from S106  
Appendix 4 – Elevations 
Appendix 5 – External facing materials used in bridge construction. 
Appendix 6 – Computer Generated Image  
Appendix 7 – QRP Report 8 September 2016 

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



T
H

R
E

E
 M

IL
L
S

 W
A

L
L
 R

IV
E

R

THREE MILLS GREEN

R
IV

E
R

 L
E

E
 N

A
V

IG
A

T
IO

N

P
R
E
S
C
O

TT C
H
A
N
N
E
L

STRAND EAST

1603

B3-AML-ARC-P-001EXISTING LOCATION PLAN

Pedestrian Bridge to Three Mills Green

1:1250@A3

28/06/16

Title

Revisions

No. Description: Date: By:
Project Number

FileDrawn by Checked

Scale

Date

Revision

Drawing Number

Project

4. This drawing is to be read in conjunction with all 

1. Do not scale drawings
2. Site verify all dimensions prior to construction

3. Report all discrepancies to Vastint immediately

Notes:

relevant documents and drawings

P
a
g
e
 3

5



P
a
g
e
 3

6



P
a
g
e
 3

7



P
a
g
e
 3

8



Page 39



Page 40



Report of Planning Application Review Meeting 
Thursday 8 September 2016
QRP09_Strand East Bridge 3 

London Legacy Development Corporation Quality Review Panel 

Report of Planning Application Review Meeting: Strand East Bridge 3 

Thursday 8 September 2016 

Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet Road, London E20 1EJ 

Panel  

Peter Studdert (chair) 
Teresa Borsuk 
Tom Lonsdale  

Attendees 

Will Steadman LLDC Planning Policy and Decisions Team 
Sara Dawes LLDC Planning Policy and Decisions Team 
Pippa Gueterbock London Legacy Development Corporation 
Deborah Denner Fortismere Associates 

Report also copied to 

Anthony Hollingsworth LLDC Planning Policy and Decisions Team 

Allison De Marco LLDC Planning Policy and Decisions Team 

Ben Hull London Borough of Newham 

Note on process 

The Quality Review Panel comments below follow on from two pre-application 
reviews of reserved matters proposals for Strand East Bridge 3. Panel members who 
attended the previous meetings were: Peter Studdert (chair); Adam Khan; Julia 
Barfield; Alex Ely; Neil Deely; Andrew Harland; Lindsey Whitelaw; Liam Bond; and 
Peter Lainson. 

Page 41



Report of Planning Application Review Meeting 
Thursday 8 September 2016
QRP09_Strand East Bridge 3 

1. Project name and site address 

Bridge 3 at Strand East, Sugar House Lane, Stratford E15 

Planning application reference: 16/00423/REM 

2. Presenting team 

Michiel van Soest Vastint UK B.V. 
Valli van Zijl  Vastint UK B.V. 
Fiona Young     ARC-ML 
Michael Westlake ARC-ML 
Stephen Haskins engineersHRW 
Ciaran Malik  engineersHRW 
Antony Nelson  Planit-IE 
Christopher Schiele GL Hearn 

Emma Gill  GL Hearn

3.

Planning officers have some concerns about the design of Bridge 3 at Strand East, 

which they feel would benefit from further refinement before planning approval is 

granted. They would encourage the design team to explore ways in which greater 

structural honesty can be achieved, as well as recommending further thought about 

would be reluctant to see these detailed design issues dealt with through planning 

conditions.   

4.

Summary 

In broad terms, the Quality Review Panel supports the design of Bridge 3 at Strand 

East. The concept of an arched glulam bridge, resting on concrete abutments, with 

metal railings has the potential to be successful. However, the panel recommends 

further thought about the detailed design of the abutments and railings, to ensure the 

quality promised by early concept sketches is achieved. They support the view of 

planning officers that the detailed design of the bridge should be resolved prior to 

planning approval  rather than being subject to planning conditions.  

Concrete abutments 

 The panel would encourage the design team to consider canting the junction, 

 between the concrete abutments and the arched glulam 

beam. They currently meet with a vertical joint, giving the impression that the 

glulam beam is unsupported.  

 Whilst the panel understands that the bridge is a u-shaped beam with no 

horizontal forces, it may improve the appearance of the bridge if the concrete 

abutments are designed to visually support the glulam beam. 

Page 42



Report of Planning Application Review Meeting 
Thursday 8 September 2016
QRP09_Strand East Bridge 3 

Metal railing 

 The panel thinks that the concept of metal railings, following a gentler curve 

than the glulam beam structure, could be successful. 

 At the bridge landings, the potential to extend the height of the concrete bridge 

abutments to the necessary height has been considered. However, the panel 

agrees with the design team that extending the railings to the edges of the 

bridge is preferable, to maximise the sense of openness.  

 To be successful, the railings will require carefully resolved bespoke design 

resolving the relationship between uprights, the glulam, integrated lighting and 

the concrete abutment. 

 Further information will be required to demonstrate the design of the railings is 

well resolved prior to reserved matters approval.  

Next steps 

 The panel recommends further information on the detailed design of the 

bridge, including the abutments and railings, should be submitted prior to 

reserved matters planning approval.  

Page 43



P
a
g
e
 4

4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 
 

Subject: Applications for Non Material Amendments (ref. 16/00503/NMA); 
reserved matters approval (ref. 16/00520/REM) and approval of 
details ref. 16/00502/AOD) for Phase 1 mixed use residential 
development at East Wick, Planning Delivery Zone 5, Queen 
Elizabeth Olympic Park, London 

Meeting date:  24 January 2017 

Report to: Planning Decisions Committee 

Report of: Anne Ogundiya, Senior Planning Development Manager 

 
FOR DECISION  

This report will be considered in public 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. This report considers three linked applications: a reserved matters application; a 
non-material amendment application; and an approval of details application. 

1.2. The submissions relate to the delivery of the East Wick (Phase 1) mixed use 
development, which comprises 302 residential units and 2,400sqm (GIA) of 
commercial space and ancillary public realm and landscaping distributed across 
four development blocks (5.5A; 5.5B; 5.5C; and 5.9) in Planning Delivery Zone 
5 (PDZ 5) within the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park (QEOP).  

1.3. The applications have been submitted on behalf of East Wick and Sweetwater 
Projects Limited and the London Legacy Development Corporation.   

1.4. The Phase 1 development is to be delivered as part of the Legacy Communities 
Scheme (LCS) outline planning permission 11/90621/OUTODA as varied by 
14/00036/VAR). Three other phases in East Wick are proposed to come 
forward within PDZ 5 and will be submitted at a later date. 

Reserved Matters Approval (RMA): 

1.5. The RMA application is made pursuant to conditions LCS0.27 and LCS0.28 of 
the LCS outline planning permission, which respectively require that 
applications are consistent with the relevant approved Zonal Masterplan (ZMP) 
and the Reserved Matters Specification contained in Annexure 3 of the LCS 
outline planning permission. The ZMP for PDZ 5 was approved in December 
2015. The ZMP sets out a series of parameters for the RMA. 

1.6. The RMA seeks approval for the layout, scale, appearance, means of access 
and landscape of the development. The key issues to be considered under this 
application are compliance and compatibility with the LCS outline planning 
permission, ZMP, design code, parameter plans, conditions and Section 106 
(S106) requirements.    

1.7. In summary, the layout, scale, appearance, means of access and landscaping 
of the proposed development are considered to be in accordance with the 

Agenda Item 6

Page 45



design principles approved as part of the LCS outline planning permission. The 
uses, quantum, mix and tenure of homes are generally compliant with the 
requirements of the ZMP and LCS outline planning permission, as well as the 
Local Plan site allocation. The buildings are designed to achieve a high 
standard of living accommodation in terms of their access, aspect, size, access 
to amenity space, car and cycle parking and refuse and recycling storage and 
collection. 

Non Material Amendment Application (NMA):  

1.8. The NMA application is necessary because the proposed Phase 1 details for 
which reserved matters approval is sought are inconsistent with the approved 
PDZ5 Maximum AOD Building Heights and Frontage Heights Parameter Plan 
and the Revised Development Specification and Framework (DSF) that form 
part of the LCS outline planning permission. This application seeks approval for 
non-material amendments to both. 

1.9. The NMA application also seeks to amend the LCS Site-Wide Proposed Levels 
Plan and PDZ5 Proposed Levels Plan. These changes are not required as a 
result of the East Wick Phase 1 proposals. They are necessary as the revised 
versions of the PDZ5 and Site-Wide levels plans, which were approved 
following a previous NMA application (15/00472/NMA) did not show the 
approved levels for Development Parcel 5.10 and adjoining areas all of which 
sit within PDZ5.  As well as seeking changes to approved LCS drawings and 
documentation, the NMA requests a number of associated minor variations to 
the approved ZMP for PDZ5. The proposed ZMP changes relate to frontage 
heights, unit size and tenure mix and phasing. 

1.10. The proposed amendments are considered acceptable on the basis that they 
are non-material in the context of the overall LCS outline planning permission 
and do not generate any new or additional significant environmental effects. 

1.11. Approval of Details (AOD): Application for the approval of details submitted 
pursuant to Condition 3 relate to Parkes Street - details of southern side of road 
of planning permission reference 15/00571/FUL, which is  for the relocation of 
vehicular road (Parkes Street) from LCS Development Parcel 5.9 to south of 
Here East. The submitted approval of details include material finishes, layby 
and Blue badge parking details are considered to be of a high standard and 
consistent with the wider QEOP details/finishes. Lighting details are also 
required to be discharged by the condition but have not been included; to that 
end the recommendation is to approve condition 3 subject to the lighting details 
being submitted for approval. 

1.12. The proposals are strongly supported by the LLDC Quality Review Panel. The 
arrangement of the blocks and choice of materials is considered to result in a 
well-planned, high quality development where the primary land use is family 
housing in a range of typologies at appropriate densities with extensive open 
space provision conveniently located for all users. The arrangement of non-
residential uses across the site would respond sensitively to the existing and 
emerging uses within the vicinity, would activate key routes as advocated by the 
Local Plan site allocation and would contribute to the vitality and viability of the 
Hackney Wick neighbourhood centre. It is considered that the resultant 
development will have a high degree of connectivity to adjoining areas and 
facilities. 

1.13. The applications demonstrate that the development is acceptable in terms of 
car and cycle parking, traffic movements, inclusive access, daylight and 
sunlight, and sustainability. 

Page 46



1.14.  No objections are raised by Stakeholders. The applications are recommended 
for approval. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Committee is asked to: 

2.1 Non Material Amendments (ref: 16/000503/NMA) 

a) Approve the application for Non-Material Amendments to Parameter 
Plans and the Revised Development Specification approved under the 
Legacy Communities Scheme outline planning permission (ref: 
11/90621/OUTODA as varied by 14/00036/VAR) for the reasons given in 
the report; 

 
2.2 Reserved Matters and Approval of Details (ref: 16/00520/REM) 

a) Approve the application for the Approval of Reserved Matters for 302 
residential units, 1,640sqm GIA of retail/leisure (A1-A5), 1,242sqm GIA 
of flexible employment space (B1b/c), a 108sqm GIA estate 
management office (B1a) and a 410sqm GIA nursery (D1), with 
associated car parking, hard and soft landscaping, public realm, 
streetscape and associated works pursuant to conditions LCS0.27 and 
LCS0.28 of the Legacy Communities Scheme (LCS) outline planning 
permission 11/90621/OUTODA (as amended) being details of layout, 
scale, appearance, means of access and landscape; and 

 
b) Delegate authority to the Director of Planning Policy and Decisions to 

approve the application subject to the conditions and informatives set 
out in section 13 of the report including refinements, amendments, 
additions and/or deletions as the Director of Planning Policy and 
Decisions considers reasonably necessary; 

 
2.3 Approval of Details (ref.16/00503/AOD) 

a) Approve application for the approval of details submitted pursuant to 
Condition 3 (Details of southern side of road) of planning permission 
reference 15/00571/FUL and delegate authority to the Director of 
Planning Policy and Decisions subject to receipt of the outstanding 
lighting detail. 
 

  

Page 47



Site Location 

 
 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 100050265 

 
 
Location:  East Wick, Planning Delivery Zone 5, Queen Elizabeth Olympic 

Park, London 
London Borough:  Newham 
 
 

Page 48



Proposal:  16/00503/NMA 
Application for Non-Material Amendments to the approved 
permission 11/90621/OUTODA varied by 14/00036/VAR to 
regularise changes to the development: 
Amend PDZ5 maximum AOD building heights and frontage 
heights parameter plan; Site Wide proposed levels plan; 
PDZ5 Proposed Levels including the revised development 
specification and framework in so far as it relates the proposed 
Phase 1 scheme. Minor variations to the approved ZMP for 
PDZ5 relating to frontage heights, unit size and tenure mix and 
phasing. 

 
 16/00520/REM 

Application for the approval of Reserved Matters for 302 
residential units, 1,640sqm GIA of retail/leisure (A1-A5), 
1,242sqm GIA of flexible employment space (B1b/c), a 108sqm 
GIA estate management office (B1a) and a 410sqm GIA nursery 
(D1), with associated car parking, hard and soft landscaping, 
public realm, streetscape and associated works pursuant to 
conditions LCS0.27 and LCS0.28 of the Legacy Communities 
Scheme (LCS) outline planning permission 11/90621/OUTODA 
(as amended) being details of layout, scale, appearance, means 
of access and landscape. 
 
16/00503/AOD 
Application for the approval of details submitted pursuant to 
Condition 3 (Parkes Street - Details of southern side of road) of 
planning permission reference 15/00571/FUL dated 21-Jan-2016 

Applicant:  East Wick and Sweetwater Projects and the London Legacy 
Development Corporation 

Planning Consultant: QUOD 

Architect/ Landscape Architects: Studio Egret West, AStudio, Piercy & Company and 
Fabrik 

 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

3.1. None  

 

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1. The legal implications of amending the original S106 Agreement are considered 
in full at Section 10 of the Report. 

 

5. SITE & SURROUNDINGS  

5.1. The Legacy Communities Scheme (LCS) outline planning permission covers an 
area of 64 ha across the QEOP and includes development in seven Planning 
Delivery Zones (PDZs). The extent of the LCS permission is shown on the plan 
at Appendix 1. The applications under consideration relate to the LCS 
development in PDZ 5 which is known as East Wick. 

5.2. PDZ 5 is in the north west of the QEOP within the London Borough of Hackney 
and is bounded in the south by the North London Line railway (London 
Overground); to the west by the River Lee Navigation; to the north by Eastway 

Page 49



and the Multi Storey Car Park (MSCP) and to the east by the parklands of the 
QEOP. The LCS PDZ 5 site is approximately 16.7 hectares in extent. 

5.3. PDZ 5 comprises 11 Development Parcels of varying size. The Phase 1 
Reserved Matters application relates to Parcels 5.5 and 5.9 which are sited 
between the Copper Box and the southern end of the Here East development. 
The Phase 1 site is approximately 2.2 ha. 

5.4. The following existing permanent land uses and developments are included 
within the PDZ5 site (see also Relevant History): Mossbourne Riverside 
Academy adjacent to the Lee Navigation; associated play and sports open 
space shared with Gainsborough School; Canal Park along the eastern side of 
the Lee Navigation; the Eastern Concourse of the Copper Box and QEOP 
parklands to the west of the southern end of Waterden Road.  

5.5. The PDZ5 site excludes the Multi Storey Car Park, the Here East commercial 
and employment development (former Media Centre) and the Copper Box 
arena. 

5.6. The main vehicle route is Waterden Road which runs south from the Lea 
Interchange on the A12 before turning east towards Stratford. At the southern 
end there is a traffic light junction with the route continuing south over the North 
London Line towards the future LCS Sweetwater (PDZ4) development. The 
main section of Waterden Road is a two lane road with pedestrian footways and 
a two-way off road cycle lane on the west side.  

5.7. An existing vehicle route runs west from Waterden Road in front of the Copper 
Box (Copper Street) and then turns north-west alongside Mossbourne Riverside 
Academy (East Bay Lane) before turning east back to Waterden Road (Parkes 
Street). The Phase 1 Reserved Matters site is bounded by these roads. The 
Copper Box arena to the south of Copper Street is 18.2m in height (28.2m 
AOD) while the Here East development to the north of Parkes Street is 
approximately 21.3m in height (31m AOD). The Mossbourne Riverside 
Academy is two storeys in height on the East Bay Lane frontage with three and 
four storey height elements set further back. 

5.8. A pedestrian and cycle route continues from Copper Street across Bridge H10 
to Wallis Road in Hackney Wick providing a route to Hackney Wick station. This 
route connects with the Lee Navigation towpath running north south along the 
east side of the canal. There is also pedestrian and cycle (and service vehicle) 
access north from East Bay Lane to Here East and Canal Park. Gainsborough 
Bridge provides access (currently for school use only) across the canal from 
Gainsborough School to the shared sports facilities in PDZ5 with the potential 
subject to planning consent for future public access. 

 

6. APPLICATION PROPOSAL  

Parkes Street - Approval of Details (ref. 16/00502/AOD) 

6.1. Application for the approval of details submitted pursuant to Condition 3 (Details 
of southern side of road) of planning permission reference 15/00571/FUL dated 
21-Jan-2016. 

6.2. Planning permission 15/00571/FUL allows for the relocation of the east west 
tertiary vehicle route known as Parkes Street from south of LCS Parcel 5.9 (i.e. 
running between Parcels 5.9 and 5.5) to north of Parcel 5.9 (i.e. between Parcel 
5.9 and Here East). Condition 3 of this permission requires the submission of 
details of the southern edge of the relocated street to be submitted for approval 
at the same time as the Reserved Matters application for Parcel 5.9. 

Page 50



6.3. The submitted details show the footway along the southern edge of the road to 
be a minimum of 2.2m in width and finished in resin bonded paving with anti-
skid resin bonded paving to layby parking bays and where the off road cycle 
lanes cross near the Waterden Road junction. Tactile paving is shown at 
pedestrian crossing points at the east and west ends of the road and at a 
central crossing point. 

6.4. The details include the public realm details for the adjoining area of Parcel 5.9 
and are integrated with those details showing the same surface treatment. To 
the south of the Waterden Road junction the details show natural stone paving 
which is a continuation of the same material used in the diagonal pedestrian 
route through the Parcel 5.9 / 5.5 detailed proposals (see 16/00520/RMA). This 
material is continued up to the carriageway of Waterden Road with the off road 
cycle route demarcated with studs where it crosses the natural stone paving. 

6.5. The details show one electric car charging point located approximately halfway 
along the route on the southern side adjoining layby parking. 

16/00503/NMA  

6.6. Application for Non-Material Amendments to the approved permission 
11/90621/OUTODA varied by 14/00036/VAR to regularise changes to the 
development including: To amend PDZ5 maximum AOD building heights and 
frontage heights parameter plan; Site Wide proposed levels plan; PDZ5 
Proposed Levels including the revised development specification and 
framework in so far as it relates the proposed Phase 1 scheme.  

6.7. The Phase 1 RMA proposals (see below under reference 16/00520/RMA) are 
inconsistent with some aspects of the currently approved ZMP and LCS plans. 
The proposed changes set out below are therefore sought as non-material 
amendments. A revised LCS Development Specification and Framework (DSF), 
an Environmental Information Report and a Design Justification Document are 
submitted in support of these amendments.  

Maximum AOD building heights and frontage heights 

6.8. Both the approved LCS plans and the approved PDZ 5 ZMP set out maximum 
block heights within each Parcel and on Parcel frontages. Increases of between 
1.5m and 3m are sought to some of these heights to provide consistency with 
the proposed Phase 1 RMA. The details are set out below with reference to the 
approved ZMP Maximum Block Heights. 

• A 2.5m increase (from 29m AOD to 31.5m AOD) to the north western 

frontage (to public realm) and part of the western frontage (East Bay Lane) of 

Development Block 5.5A. 

• A 3m increase (from 26m AOD to 29m AOD) to part of the southern frontage 

(Copper Street) of Development Block 5.5A. 

• A 1.5m increase (from 29m AOD to 30.5m AOD) to the northern (to public 

realm) and eastern (Waterden Road) frontages of Development Block 5.5B. 

• A 3m increase (from 26m AOD to 29m AOD) to part of the southern frontage 

(Copper Street) and part of the eastern frontage (Waterden Road) of 

Development Block 5.5C. 

• A uniform 2.7m increase (from 26m AOD to 28.7m AOD) to the frontage of 

Development Parcel 5.9 (to Here East and the diagonal public realm). 

 

Page 51



Unit size and tenure mix 

6.9. Variations are sought as non-material amendments to the PDZ5 Proportion and 
Distribution of Residential Units ZMP Plan. These are shown on Table 1 below. 

6.10. The unit size and tenure distribution showing proposed amendments are 
highlighted. Note: no changes are proposed to two bedroom units. 

 

Table 1: Unit Size and Tenure Mix 
 

 % of one bedroom units % of three bedroom units 

 Private Affordable Private Affordable 

Block Approved 

ZMP 

range 

Phase 1 

proposed 

Approved 

ZMP 

range 

Phase 1 

proposed 

Approved 

ZMP 

range 

Phase 1 

proposed 

Approved 

ZMP 

range 

Phase 1 

proposed 

5.5A 5-25% 17% (13 

units) 

10-20% 8% (6 

units) 

40-60% 49% (38 

units) 

1-20%  0% 

5.5B 1-20% 10% (9 

units) 

1-20% 14% (12 

units) 

30-50% 34% (29 

units) 

15-35% 21% (18 

units) 

5.5C - 0% 20-40% 26% (18 

units) 

1-20% 10% (7 

units) 

20-40% 29% (20 

units) 

5.9 10-30% 34% (24 

units) 

- 0% 55-75% 43% (30 

units) 

- 0% 

Phasing 

6.11. The Design and Inclusive Access Statement approved as part of the ZMP 
indicated a phasing plan that included Parcel 5.4 in phase 1 of the East Wick 
proposals. The NMA confirms that Parcel 5.4 will not form part of Phase 1 but 
instead come forward as part of Phase 4. Phase 1 comprises only Parcels 5.5 
and 5.9. 

Site-wide and PDZ 5 proposed levels plan 

6.12. Amended PDZ 5 and Site Wide proposed levels plans are submitted to show 
the correct levels for Development Parcel 5.10 and adjoining areas by the East 
Wick Primary School reserved matters application (14/00464/REM), which was 
approved on 4 September 2014. 

16/00520/RMA:  

6.13. The proposals are the detailed Reserved Matters (layout, scale, external 
appearance, means of access and landscaping) for Phase 1 of the LCS 
development in PDZ 5 (East Wick) and follow approval of the Zonal Masterplan 
for PDZ 5 in December 2015 (15/00472/AOD). The details show a 
predominantly residential development of 302 units with a range of commercial 
and non-residential uses at ground floors in buildings of three to six storeys. 
Details are shown of associated car parking, landscaping and public realm 
works. 

Page 52



6.14. The development is in a roughly square form bisected by a diagonal pedestrian 
route (The Diagonal) and public realm running from East Bay Lane in the south 
west to Waterden Road in the north east. Parcel 5.9 is to the north west of The 
Diagonal and comprises two free standing five storey blocks with residential 
upper floors and flexible employment space, nursery and retail / leisure uses on 
the ground floor. To the south east of The Diagonal Parcel 5.5 is sub-divided 
into 5A, 5B and 5C where development is in the form of five / six storey 
perimeter blocks with three storey mews  housing accessed via two internal 
mews streets from Copper Street and Waterden Road. Ground floor uses are 
mainly retail and leisure fronting Copper Street and flexible employment space 
fronting The Diagonal. 

 
Table 2: Non-Residential Floorspace 

Use Floorspace (GIA) 

Retail / leisure (A1-5, D2) 1,640 sq. m 

Flexible business space (B1) 1,242 sq. m 

Children’s nursery (D1) 410 sq. m 

Estate office (B1) 108 sq. m 

Total 3,400 sq. m 

 

Table 3: Residential Mix and Tenure 

Unit 
size 

Social 
rent 

Affordable 
rent 

Shared 
ownership 

Market 
for 
sale 

Private 
rented 
(PRS) 

Number of 
units 

% of 
units 

 
1 beds 

 
0 

 
0 

 
36 (1 
WCH) 

 
15 (1 
WCH) 

 
31 (2 
WCH) 

 
82 (4 
WCH) 

 
27% 

 
2 beds 

 
0 

 
0 

 
38 (8 
WCH) 

 
16 (2 
WCH) 

 
24 (4 
WCH) 

 
78 (14 
WCH) 

 
26% 

 
3 beds 

 
9 (1 
WCH) 

 
9 (1 WCH) 

 
20 

 
54 (6 
WCH) 

 
50 (5 
WCH) 

 
142 (13 
WCH) 

 
47% 

 
Totals 
 

 
9 (3%) 

 
9 (3%) 

 
94 (31%) 

 
85 
(28%) 

 
105 
(35%) 

 
302 (31 
WCH) 

 
100% 

WCH = Wheelchair adaptable housing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 53



Table 4: Car Parking Provision 

 Block 
5.5A 

Block 
5.5B 

Block 
5.5C 

Block 
5.9 

On-
street 

Totals 

Residential 
undercroft 
spaces 

17 44 32 0 0 93 

Visitor/car 
club/employees 

0 0 0 0 19 19 

Blue Badge / 
wheelchair 
accessible 

Up to 12 Up to 13 Up to 6 0 Up to 5 Up to 36 

Mobility scooter 
charge points 

1 3 4 0 0 8 

Electric vehicle 
enabled 
spaces 

3 9 7 0 1 20 

Totals per 
block and on-
street 

17 44 32 0 19 112 

 

Table 5: Cycle Parking 

 Block 
5.5A 

Block 
5.5B 

Block 
5.5C 

Block 5.9 On-street Totals 

Residential 
cycle 
spaces 

136 184 127 116 0 563 

Visitor / 
employee 
spaces 

0 0 0 0 36 36 

Motorcycle 
spaces 

4 0 0 0 0 4 

Total 
cycle 
spaces 

136 184 127 116 36 599 

 

Open space, play space and amenity space 

6.15. Doorstep play space: 100 sq. m is provided at a central point on The Diagonal 
pedestrian route with other informal areas provided throughout the 
development. 

6.16. Private amenity space is provided in communal podium gardens at Blocks 5.5A, 
B and C and roof terraces with balconies provided to flats and private gardens 
to houses. Public space with hard and soft landscaping is provided along The 
Diagonal pedestrian route in a series of three interconnected spaces known as 
East Bay Square (fronting East Bay Lane), Central Square and Community 
Square (fronting Waterden Road). 

6.17. The table below shows the Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) areas provided as 
part of Phase 1 with the percentage which they represent of PDZ 5 total 
requirements.  

 

Page 54



Table 6:  BAP Habitat 
 

BAP Habitat PDZ 5 requirement Proposed Phase 1 % of PDZ 5 
requirement 
provided in Phase 1 

Multi-functional 
open space 

0.9ha 0.267ha 29% 

Streetscapes 0.19ha 0.054ha 28% 

Green roofs 0.67ha 0.233ha 34% 

Total BAP 
commitment 

1.76ha 0.554ha 31% 

Detailed description of blocks:  

6.18. Three design studios have come together to design the four blocks described 
below. 

Block 5.5A (Studio Egret West) 

6.19. Block 5.5A comprises three elements:  

• A five storey block fronts Copper Street and the south west corner of the 
site. The elevational treatment is a grid design using a light coloured / buff 
brick finish and industrial style window detail and projecting and recessed 
balconies. The ground floor contains active retail / business units fronting 
Copper Street with a residential core entrance on Copper Street. 

• A six storey block faces East Bay Lane and The Diagonal. This building 
uses a light grey brick with an external steel frame in dark red / copper finish 
on the outward facing elevations forming a colonnade at ground floor and 
frame for projecting balconies. Entrance to the residential core is from The 
Diagonal. Retail / leisure and flexible employment space fronts East Bay 
Lane and The Diagonal at ground floor. 

• Three, three storey mews houses face the north south mews street 
accessed from Copper Street. The southern house is finished in the light 
coloured brick of the adjoining block while the other two are finished in the 
light grey brick. The ground floor kitchen / dining room has a single aspect 
to the mews street while the upper floors are dual aspect with private rear 
amenity space at first floor. 

6.20. The central area enclosed by the five / six storey blocks contains undercroft car 
parking for 17 cars (2 spaces can be Blue Badge parking) and 1 mobility 
scooter charge point. Vehicle access is from the mews street. Secure cycle 
parking for 136 cycles is provided. Above the parking a communal podium 
garden is provided. Refuse collection and servicing is from Copper Street. 

6.21. This Block has 77 residential units of which 13 are wheelchair adaptable. 
Thirteen of the units are shared ownership with the remaining 64 for market 
sale. The mix is: 19 one beds; 20 two beds and 38 three beds. 

Block 5.5B (Piercy and Company) 

6.22. Block 5.5B comprises two elements: 

• Two six storey blocks face The Diagonal and Waterden Road on the 
perimeter of this parcel. The design is a staggered brick grid with recessed 
balconies and uses rustic red brick finish with a brick relief pattern in infill 
panels. At ground floor flexible employment space is provided fronting The 
Diagonal and Waterden Road. 

Page 55



• Five, three storey mews houses are located on the southern boundary of 
the plot facing the east west Mews Street.  These houses are of similar 
design to the mews houses in 5.5A and are finished in a light coloured brick. 
A further five, three storey mews houses are located on the western 
boundary facing the north south mews street. In these houses there is a 
rear sunken terrace at ground floor level as well as first floor private amenity 
area. 

6.23. The central area enclosed by the six storey blocks contains undercroft car 
parking for 44 cars including 5 wheelchair accessible spaces and 3 mobility 
scooter charge points. Vehicle access is from the east west mews street. 
Secure cycle parking for 184 cycles is provided. Above the parking a communal 
podium garden is provided. Refuse collection is from the two mews streets with 
occasional managed servicing also possible from The Diagonal. 

6.24. Block 5.5B has 86 residential units of which 12 are wheelchair adaptable. 
Twenty four of the units are shared ownership; 8 are for social rent; 8 for 
affordable rent; 11 for market sale and the remaining 35 for PRS. The mix is: 21 
one beds; 18 two beds and 47 three beds. 

Block 5.5C (Astudio) 

6.25. Block 5.5C comprises three elements: 

• Two, five storey buildings of similar design are proposed fronting Waterden 
Road and Copper Street. The building on Copper Street has an angled 
frontage as it follows the bend in Copper Street. The elevational treatment is 
characterised by a grey textured brick finish, regular window pattern and 
vertical articulation provided by recessed balconies. A lighter coloured brick 
is used on the internal courtyard elevations. The ground floors on Copper 
Street and on the corner with Waterden Road are retail units. 

• On the north of the plot, seven mews houses are proposed fronting the east 
west mews street. These houses have integral garage parking with cycle 
storage space. There is an external patio at ground floor and amenity space 
at first floor rear. The brick finish reflects the materials used in the apartment 
blocks. 

• Block 5.5C follows the design of the other 5.5 plots in providing in the 
central area an undercroft parking area with communal podium above. In 
this case, parking is provided for 32 cars in the undercroft with vehicle 
access from Copper Street.  Secure cycle parking is provided. Refuse 
collection and servicing is from Copper Street and the mews streets. 

6.26. Block 5.5C has 69 residential units of which 6 are wheelchair adaptable. Fifty 
seven of the units are shared ownership, 10 for market sale and one each for 
affordable rent and social rent. The mix is: 18 one beds; 24 two beds and 27 
three beds. 

Block 5.9 (Studio Egret West) 

6.27. Block 5.9 comprises two linked, angular shaped blocks fronting Parkes Street 
and Here East to the north and The Diagonal to the south. The main buildings 
are five storeys with a single storey link between them in which the estate 
management office is located. The ground floor of the north eastern building 
has retail and business units while the south west building at ground floor 
houses the children’s nursery with access from The Diagonal. 

6.28. The elevations of Block 5.9 are characterised by horizontal bands of copper 
coloured vertical aluminium fins. The secondary cladding material is a powder 

Page 56



coated grey corrugated aluminium cladding oriented horizontally. All windows 
are full height and openable and the aluminium fins provide balustrades. At 
ground floor slate cladding is the external wall material. 

6.29. Block 5.9 has 70 residential units all of which are for private rent (PRS). The mix 
is: 24 one beds; 16 two beds and 30 three beds.  No off street parking is 
provided for this block. Servicing and refuse collection is from Parkes Street. 

Other submitted information  

6.30. The following supporting information is submitted: Design and Inclusive Access 
Statement; Planning Statement; Zonal Masterplan Conformity Statement; 
Daylight and Sunlight Assessment; Energy Statement; Landscape Maintenance 
and Management Plan; Microclimate Report; Noise and Vibration Mitigation 
Report; Equalities and Inclusion Statement; Remediation Statement; Statement 
of Participation; Sustainability Policy Compliance Statement; Sustainable 
Construction Measures; Waste Strategy; Water Statement; Public Art and 
Events Strategy Update; Affordable Housing car parking; TV Signal Survey. 

Environmental Impact Assessment 

6.31. A screening opinion request for the current development was submitted on 29th 
September 2016 (16/00526/SCRES). 

6.32. The information submitted in support of the request concluded that there would 
be no new or different significant effects on traffic, noise, air quality, ecology, 
hydrology, waste, sustainability, socio-economics, ground conditions, 
townscape and visual, heritage, daylight and sunlight, or wind microclimate 
compared to the LCS Environmental Statement.  

6.33. The Planning Policy and Decisions Team (PPDT) considered the submitted 
screening opinion request and accompanying information and concluded, on 
the basis of advice from its environmental consultant that an EIA was not 
required.  This was confirmed to the applicant on 4th November 2016.   

6.34. The further assessments demonstrate no new or different significant 
environmental impacts that would require an Environmental Impact 
Assessment. 

 

7. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  

7.1. 11/90621/OUTODA (as varied by 14/00036/VAR) - The Legacy Communities 
Scheme (LCS) outline planning permission was granted in September 2012 
under reference 11/90621/OUTODA and was varied by 14/00036/VAR. In 
summary the scheme comprises: 

7.2. A comprehensive, phased, mixed use development within the future Queen 
Elizabeth Olympic Park, as set out in the Revised Development Specification & 
Framework (LCS-GLB-APP-DSF-002). The development comprises up to 
641,817sqm of residential (C3) uses, including up to 4,000sqm of Sheltered 
Accommodation (C3); up to 14,500sqm of hotel (C1) accommodation; up to 
30,369sqm (B1a) and up to 15,770sqm (B1b/B1c) business and employment 
uses; up to 25,987sqm (A1-A5) shopping, food and drink and financial and 
professional services; up to 3,606sqm (D2) leisure space and up to 31,451sqm 
(D1) community, health, cultural, assembly and education facilities, including 
two primary schools and one secondary school; new streets, open space and all 
other associated development – approved September 2012. 

7.3. 14/00036/VAR: The LCS was varied by this permission which removed 
conditions which were originally attached to the permission and required the 

Page 57



eastern building line of development parcels 5.6, 5.7 and 5.8 in PDZ 5 (the Park 
Edge parcels) to be set back by not less than 15m – approved August 2014 

7.4. 14/00035/AOD: Details were approved under this reference pursuant to 
condition LCSO.49 (phasing) which brought forward the delivery of housing in 
PDZ 4 and 5 sooner than originally proposed. The original s106 agreement was 
varied to reflect impacts on affordable housing (including the introduction of 
Private Rented Sector (PRS) housing), viability, family housing and transport 
phasing – approved August 2014. 

7.5. Within PDZ 5 the LCS provides for up to 116,711sqm floorspace (GEA) within 
the following use classes and maximum floorspace: residential (C3) 96,097 
sqm; retail (A1-5) 3,268 sq. m; employment (B1) 9,000 sq. m; leisure (D2) 1,457 
sqm; community facilities (D1) 6,888sqm. 

7.6. 15/00472/AOD and 15/00473/NMA: The PDZ 5 Zonal Masterplan (with non-
material amendments to certain LCS parameter plans, predominant uses, 
building heights, open spaces and densities) was approved in December 2015. 
The approval also included other relevant PDZ 5 specific strategies and details 
required by LCS conditions including Construction Transport Management Plan, 
Air Quality Assessment, Green Infrastructure Statement, Car Parking and 
Coach Parking Strategies, Traffic Generation Report and Delivery and Servicing 
Strategy – approved December 2015. 

7.7. 15/00571/FUL: Relocation of vehicular road (Parkes Street) from LCS 
Development Parcel 5.9 to south of the International Broadcast Centre (Here 
East) – approved January 2016. 

 

8. POLICIES & GUIDANCE 

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) (NPPF) 

8.1. Planning  policies contained within the National  Planning  Policy  Framework –
March 2012 are relevant to the application and the over-arching principle of the 
Framework is that  local   authorities should be  positive and  proactive in 
encouraging sustainable  growth  and  addressing  barriers to investment. The 
NPPF  should be read in conjunction  with the  national Planning  Practice 
Guidance, a web-based  resource  for  all  users  of  the  planning  system.  This 
describes the importance of good design and how this can be achieved through 
planning decisions. 

8.2. The following NPPF policies are relevant to this submission: 

• 1. Building a strong, competitive economy 

• 4. Promoting sustainable transport 

• 6. Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes 

• 7. Requiring good design 

• 8. Promoting healthy communities 

• 10. Meeting the challenge of climate change 

• 11. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

 

 

 

Page 58



The London Plan Consolidated with Alterations since 2011 (March 2016) 

8.3. The following London Plan policies are relevant to this submission: 

• 2.1 London in its global, European and United Kingdom context 

• 2.4 The 2012 Games and their legacy 

• 2.9 Inner London 

• 2.13 Opportunity areas 

• 2.14 Areas for regeneration 

• 3.3 Increasing housing supply 

• 3.5 Quality and design of housing developments 

• 3.6 Children and Young People’s Play and Informal Recreation Facilities 

• 3.8 Housing choice 

• 3.9 Mixed and balanced communities 

• 3.11 Affordable housing targets 

• 4.1 Developing London’s economy 

• 4.7 Retail and town centre development 

• 4.12 Improving opportunities for all 

• 5.1 Climate change mitigation 

• 5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions 

• 5.3: Sustainable design and construction 

• 5.6 Decentralised energy in development proposals 

• 5.7 Renewable energy 

• 5.9 Overheating and cooling 

• 5.10 Urban greening 

• 5.11 Green roof and development site environs 

• 5.12 Flood risk management 

• 5.13 Sustainable drainage 

• 5.15 Water use and supplies 

• 5.21 Contaminated land 

• 6.9 Cycling 

• 6.10 Walking 

• 6.13 Parking 

• 7.1 Lifetime neighbourhoods 

• 7.2 An inclusive environment 

• 7.3 Designing out crime 

• 7.4 Local character 

• 7.5 Public realm 

Page 59



• 7.6 Architecture 

• 7.14 Improving air quality 

LLDC Local Plan (2015) 

8.4. The  London  Legacy  Development  Corporation  Local  Plan  2015-2031 was 
adopted  on  21  July  2015  and provides  the  formal  local  policy  basis  for 
planning decisions. 

8.5. The site is within the Hackney Wick and Fish Island Sub Area as defined in the 
Local Plan and forms part of site allocation SA1.7 (East Wick and Here East) 
which also includes Here East and the Copper Box. The description of SA1.7 is:  

‘…Employment cluster and comprehensive, phased mixed-use development, 
including residential, employment, retail, leisure and community floorspace 
(incorporating a new primary school and two nurseries)…’ 

8.6. Waterden Road, the route of Copper Street towards Bridge H10 and East Bay 
Lane are identified as key connections; Copper Street is identified as an active 
frontage and is also identified as part of Hackney Wick Neighbourhood Centre.  

8.7. The Local Plan policies below are relevant to the application: 

• SP.1 Building a strong and diverse economy 

• B.1 Location and maintenance of employment uses 

• B.2 Thriving town, neighbourhood and local centre 

• B.4 Providing low-cost and managed workspace 

• B.5 Increasing local access to jobs, skills and employment training 

• SP.2 Maximising housing and infrastructure provision within new 
neighbourhoods  

• H.1 Providing a mix of housing types 

• H.2 Delivering affordable housing 

• H.7 Large-scale investment in private rented sector 

• CI.1Providing new and retaining existing community infrastructure 

• SP.3 Integrating the built and natural environment 

• BN.1 Responding to place 

• BN.3 Maximising biodiversity 

• BN.4 Designing residential schemes 

• BN.5 Requiring inclusive design 

• BN.7 Improving Local Open Space 

• BN.8 Maximising opportunities for play 

• BN.12 Protecting archaeological interest 

• BN.13 Improving the quality of land  

• T.4 Managing development and its transport impacts to promote 
sustainable transport choices and prioritise pedestrians and cyclists 

• T.6 Facilitating local connectivity 

Page 60



• T.8 Parking and parking standards in new development 

• T.9 Providing for pedestrians and cyclists 

• SP.5 A sustainable and healthy place to live and work 

• S.1 Health and wellbeing 

• S.2 Energy in new development 

• S.3 Energy infrastructure and heat networks 

• S.4 Sustainable design and construction 

• S.5 Water supply and waste water disposal 

• S.6 Waste reduction 

• S.7 Overheating and urban greening 

• S.8 Flood risk 

• Sub area policy 1.1 Managing change in Hackney Wick and Fish Island 

• Sub area policy 1.2 Promoting Hackney Wick and Fish Island’s unique 
identity and appearance 

• Sub area policy 1.3 Connecting Hackney Wick and Fish Island 

• Sub area policy 1.4 Preserving or enhancing heritage assets in Hackney 
Wick and Fish Island  

• Sub area policy 1.5 Improving the public and private realm in Hackney 
Wick and Fish Island 

• Sub area policy 1.6 Building to an appropriate height in Hackney Wick 
and Fish Island  

8.8. Other Relevant Planning Guidance 

• Olympic Legacy Supplementary Planning Guidance (July 2012) 

• Mayor of London Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (March 
2016) 

• Mayor of London Homes for Londoners draft Affordable Housing and 
Viability Supplementary Planning Guidance (November 2016) 

• Mayor of London Play and Informal Recreation Supplementary Planning 
Guidance (September 2012).  

• Mayor of London Shaping Neighbourhoods Accessible London: 
Achieving an Inclusive Environment Supplementary Planning Guidance 
(October 2014) 

• Mayor of London Sustainable Design and Construction Supplementary 
Planning Guidance (April 2014)  

• LLDC Inclusive Design Standards (March 2013) 

• LLDC Design Quality Policy (September 2012) 

 

9. CONSULTATION 

9.1. The application was advertised in the Hackney Today newspaper publication on 
the 31 October 2016 and 4 site notices posted on 31 October 2016.  38 

Page 61



statutory and 49 non-statutory consultees letters were sent out on the 20th 
October and 244 letters were sent to occupiers and landowners in the area.  

9.2. All letters referred to all three applications being considered and unless 
otherwise stated the responses refer to all three applications. The following are 
the received responses: 

9.3. LB Tower Hamlets Highways – No objections 

9.4. Sustrans – (responding to 16/00520/REM)  

• Sustrans is co-ordinating delivery of the Mayor of London’s Quietways 
cycle route programme on behalf of TfL. Quietway 6 will link Aldgate to 
Hainault and phase 1 is expected to open mid/late 2017. It will connect 
Wallis Road via bridge H10 and run along Copper Street and the southern 
edge of East Wick Phase 1 before crossing Waterden Road. Sustrans 
wishes to highlight the proposed Quietway and ensure the proposed route 
is protected.  

• Detailed design is on-going but Sustrans wish to put forward the following 
for consideration: potential designation of the southern footway of Copper 
Street as a shared pedestrian / cycle route; cycle crossing of the Copper 
Box rear service access road; extension of shared space on the south west 
corner of the Copper Street / Waterden Road junction; provision of ‘cycle 
zebra crossing’ on Waterden Road;   

• Sustrans would like to discuss with East Wick developers detailed 
amendments to the current proposals to provide for a shared cycle / 
pedestrian area on the north side of the Copper Street / Waterden Road 
junction to minimise risk of conflict between pedestrians and cyclists. 
Sustrans and TfL also look forward to seeing the construction traffic 
management plan. 

Applicant Response 

The applicant has confirmed that they have commenced discussions with 
SUSTRANS to discuss the proposals with the possibility of amending the 
footpath to ensure there is no conflict between pedestrians and cyclists. 

Members should note proposed condition 4 on the RMA which is recommended 
to ensure details are submitted to PPDT for approval. The condition allows for 
the footpath to be amended to reflect the outcome of the discussions. 

9.5. Transport for London (TfL) - London Underground Infrastructure protection 
has no comment to make on this planning application. 

9.6. Sport England – Does not consider the proposals fall within their remit and so 
have not provided a detailed response. 

9.7. Network Rail – No observations 

9.8. Natural England –confirm that their Standing Advice on Protected Species 
should be applied to this development. 

9.9. HS1 Limited – Confirms no comment 

9.10. Historic England - The applications should be determined in accordance with 
national and local policy guidance, and on the basis of your specialist 
conservation advice.  

9.11. Canal and River Trust – Confirms no comment 

 

Page 62



London Legacy Development Corporation Quality Review Panel (QRP) 

9.12. On 15 December 2016 the Quality Review Panel undertook a post-submission 
review of the scheme and made the following summarised comments (the full 
report is appended (appendix 4. g): 

9.13. Summary 

‘…The Quality Review Panel repeats its support for approval of the reserved 
matters application for East Wick Phase 1. The designs teams – Studio Egret 
West; Astudio; and Piercy & Company – have responded well to its earlier 
comments. The panel finds much to admire in the distinctive architecture 
proposed for both Parcels 5.5 and 5.9. The quality of residential 
accommodation has been improved by fewer single aspect units and shorter 
access corridors benefiting from increased natural light. The panel thinks that 
the simplified landscape strategy will work well and that modifications to the 
wider public realm will succeed in creating a safe and friendly environment 
where pedestrians enjoy priority…’ 

9.14. Residential Accommodation 

• Concerns had been raised about the relatively high proportion of single 
aspect units included in Parcels 5.5 and 5.9, as well as lengthy central 
access corridors.  

• The panel acknowledges that the design teams have attempted, as far as 
possible, to reduce the number of single aspect units and to mitigate the 
impact on those that are, including by generous unit sizes and faceted 
façades to provide an additional aspect.  

• The panel had previously welcomed revisions to internal layouts that 
resulted in shorter access corridors benefiting from increased natural light.  

9.15. Public Realm / Landscape Design 

• The panel welcomes revisions made to both the public realm and 
landscape design strategies. The much simplified landscape design 
responds well to its earlier comments. The panel also supports 
amendments made to the public realm along East Bay Lane and the 
junction between East Bay Lane and Copper Street, at the approach to 
Bridge H10.  

• Clarity must be ensured in order to avoid any confusion around the 
hierarchy of vehicles, cycles and pedestrians at this junction – especially as 
this can be expected to be a popular cycle route from Hackney Wick, 
across Bridge H10, to Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park.  

9.16. Legacy Corporations PPDT Transport Consultants  

- PPDT’s Transport Consultants raised no objections to the proposals. 

9.17. Legacy Corporations PPDT Environmental Consultants  

- PPDT’s Environmental Consultants have reviewed the various reports 
submitted (remediation, sustainability, air quality, landscaping, wind, noise 
and DSO) by the applicant, raising a number of queries in relation to specific 
points. Responses have been provided by the applicant, and generally all 
matters raised have been resolved.  To that end Officers are satisfied that 
the proposals are acceptable and conditions are imposed as appropriate.  

 

 

Page 63



10. ASSESSMENT OF PLANNING ISSUES  

10.1. The principle of the new East Wick Neighbourhood in PDZ 5 has already been 
established, having been assessed and approved as part of the LCS outline 
planning permission (11/90621/OUTODA as varied under ref 14/00036/VAR 
and the subsequent approved ZMP.  

10.2. The proposals submitted within the Reserved Matters submission 
(16/00520/REM) are dependent on changes proposed to the Parameter Plans 
and Revised Development Specification and Framework which form part of the 
list of Approved Documents that define the Legacy Communities Scheme (LCS) 
Outline Planning Permission. The proposals also include minor variations to the 
approved ZMP. Subject to these amendments being accepted, which are 
considered under the associated non-material amendment submission, 
consideration should then be given to the matters reserved by the original 
outline permission, being layout, scale, appearance, landscaping and means of 
access, and the supporting technical information as required by the LCS 
Reserved Matters Specification. 

Application for Non-Material Amendment (application reference 16/00503/NMA) 

10.3. The application for non-material amendments to the outline planning permission 
is made under s96A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).  
In accordance with the approved LCS Superseding Development Protocol an 
Environmental Information Report (EIR) which evaluates the proposed changes 
has been submitted in support of the NMA.  PPDT’s Environmental Consultants 
have reviewed the EIR and confirmed that the submitted details and analysis is 
robust and acceptable. 

Building Heights and Frontage heights:  

10.4. As set out in paragraph 6.9 the application for Non Material Amendments seeks 
to amend the approved LCS plans and the approved PDZ 5 ZMP which set out 
the maximum block heights within each Parcel and on Parcel frontages (see 
Appendix 5). Increases of between 1.5m and 3m are sought to some of these 
heights to provide consistency with the proposed Phase 1 RMA. Those changes 
in summary equate to: the Maximum A.O.D. frontage heights increase by 1.5m, 

2.5m along the Diagonal frontage and 3m on Waterden Road and Copper 
Street frontages of DP 5.5; and the maximum A.O.D. frontage heights increase 
by 2.7m on DP 5.9. Whilst height increases of between 1.5m and 3m to the 
maximum frontage heights are proposed they are nevertheless still within the 
maximum building height limits of 32m AOD for 5.5A, 5.5B and 5.5C and 29m 
AOD for 5.9. It should be noted that the ground level of Phase 1 is 12m AOD.  

10.5. The Local Plan Site Allocation requires the ‘prevailing and generally expected 
heights’ at East Wick to be 20m above existing ground level. This is 
represented through a mixture of intermittent building heights that together form 
a unique arrangement that contributes to the area’s townscape. The resultant 
increases in height would not increase the building heights to above 20m 

10.6. The amendments proposed for the approved frontage heights at DP 5.5 provide 
consistent building and frontage heights, reinforcing the prominent street 
frontages around the perimeter of the site along the main routes of Waterden 
Road, Copper Street, East Bay Lane and Parkes Street to frame the public 
realm at East Bay Square.  This proposal maintains the lower height centre 
within the perimeter block, with the design of the mews streets within 
Development Parcel 5.5 providing a transition from the prominent street 
frontage to a more residential scale of streets. 

Page 64



10.7. The amendments proposed for the approved frontage heights at DP 5.9 
reinforce the character of this block which sit surrounded by public realm which 
defines the frontage along Parkes Street, relative to the scale of the Here East 
frontage opposite and to frame the public realm at East Bay Square. Officers 
consider these amendments to the building and frontage heights create strong 
building forms which reinforce and enhance the special character of the Phase 
1 sites, defining the main street frontages of Waterden Road, Copper Street, 
East Bay Lane and Parkes Street and fronting public realm of the Diagonal. The 
articulation of the massing has strengthened prominent corners particularly at 
location seen in long views when approaching the site along the main access 
routes into East Wick and to frame the public spaces. A more consistent 
building and frontage line also responds to the strong forms and building 
heights of the neighbouring East Wick Primary School, Here East and the 
Copper Box Arena. 

10.8. As assessed below in the consideration of the reserved matters application, 
notwithstanding the proposed changes to the approved parameter plans; the 
applicant has satisfactorily demonstrated to Officers that the development has 
been located on the site appropriately, and would be built to a scale and form 
which would not cause any significant loss of amenity to surrounding 
developments.  The development has been designed to a high standard and the 
quality of accommodation would be high. The buildings are of sufficient size to 
provide the appropriate space, uses and facilities as proposed by the LCS 
outline planning permission and the ZMP. Impacts on townscape and visual 
amenity and daylight, sunlight and overshadowing would not be adversely 
impacted when compared to the original LCS permission. 

10.9. Officers are comfortable that for the reasons set out below in the layout, scale 
and appearance paragraphs that the design intentions of the approved LCS / 
Design Codes are not compromised and the resultant development is 
appropriate to its context. The proposed amendments have regard to the 
emerging context within the PDZ5. Officer analysis concludes that the increases 
to the maximum frontage heights would not have material impact on the overall 
LCS scheme.  

10.10. The proposed amendments to some building and frontage heights are not 
considered to materially alter the LCS permission or create new or different 
significant environmental effects. Proportionately the amendments relate to 
changes given the overall scale height and amount of development compared 
to the LCS. The changes are a non-material alteration to the approved scheme. 

Unit size and tenure mix 

10.11. Variations are sought as non-material amendments to the PDZ5 Proportion and 
Distribution of Residential Units ZMP Plan. These are shown in Table 1, 
replicated below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 65



 % of one bedroom units % of three bedroom units 

 Private Affordable Private Affordable 

Block Approved 

ZMP 

range 

Phase 1 

proposed 

Approved 

ZMP 

range 

Phase 1 

proposed 

Approved 

ZMP 

range 

Phase 1 

proposed 

Approved 

ZMP 

range 

Phase 1 

proposed 

5.5A 5-25% 17% (13 

units) 

10-20% 8% (6 

units) 

40-60% 49% (38 

units) 

1-20%  0% 

5.5B 1-20% 10% (9 

units) 

1-20% 14% (12 

units) 

30-50% 34% (29 

units) 

15-35% 21% (18 

units) 

5.5C - 0% 20-40% 26% (18 

units) 

1-20% 10% (7 

units) 

20-40% 29% (20 

units) 

5.9 10-30% 34% (24 

units) 

- 0% 55-75% 43% (30 

units) 

- 0% 

10.12. The NMA sets out four occasions where the proposed proportion of a particular 
type of unit is outside the range indicated in the approved ZMP.  Members will 
note from the table that three of the tenure mixes: one bed affordable units in 
DP5.5A; one bed private units in DP5.9 and three bed affordable units in 5.5A 
have a variance with the approved ZMP range of less than 5%.  

10.13. The reduction in the number of 3+ bed units within DP5.9, results in a 12% 
variance with that set out in the ZMP range.  

10.14. The reasons for the the non-compliance is twofold 1) QRP and Officers 
querying the layout and the proposed number of single aspect family units, 
which as detailed in the RMA has been reduced to satisfactory standards and 2) 
Phase 1 is located in the heart of East Wick and part of the site is within the 
Neighbourhood Centre, with Here East to the north, the Copper Box to the 
South and East Wick School to the west.  The approved parameters for the 
development specify that Phase 1 should include commercial ground floor uses 
with residential above.  Given this, Phase 1 is providing more 1 and 2 bed units 
which are more common in a neighbourhood centre location and which 
inevitably has an impact on the delivery of the family housing.  Nevertheless 
Phase 1 development includes 47% family homes.   The remaining phases of 
the East Wick development will include a greater level of family housing and will 
ensure that the PDZ5 target of 66% is met on completion of that development.   

10.15. The subsequent phases which generally front the parklands will provide the 
family homes and therefore on completion of PDZ5 not less than 66% of the 
residential units shall be family housing in accordance with the LCS outline 
planning permission. The applicant has given Officers reassurance that this is a 
reasonable prospect.   

10.16. The LCS s106 agreement requires not less than 30% of the total number of 
residential units constructed across PDZ5 to be affordable housing units. Of the 
302 homes included in Phase 1 37% are affordable.   

10.17. The LCS / ZMP require an affordable housing tenure split across PDZ5 of 
9:9:12 (social rented: affordable rented: shared ownership (see table below). 

Page 66



  
Phase 
1 

% 
Phase 
2  

% 
Balance for 
Phases 3 & 
4 

PDZ5  

Market Sale 85 28% 90 52% 33% 35% 

PRS 105 35% 50 29% 38% 35% 

Family 
Housing 

142 47% 116 67% 79% 66% 

Affordable 
Housing, 
comprising: 

112 37% 33 19% 29% 30% 

a) Social Rent 9 3% 16 9% 13% 9% 

b) Affordable 
Rent 

9 3% 17 10% 13% 9% 

c) Shared 
Ownership 

94 31% 0 0% 3% 12% 

302  173  412 887 

 

10.18. The LCS site wide target is for a 30:30:40 split). At this stage for Phase 1 the 
affordable tenure split is 3:3:31. Given the neighbourhood centre location the 
majority of these units are shared ownership units. The applicant has given 
Officers the reassurance that the shortfall will be adjusted in the later phases to 
ensure compliance with the LCS. 

10.19. Phase 2 is currently expected to include 9% social rent and 10% affordable rent 
units.  The remaining phases of the development will then provide 13% social 
rent, 13% affordable rent and 3% intermediate units to ensure the ZMP 
requirements are met.  These units will be distributed in accordance with the 
ZMP drawing ‘PDZ5: Proportion and Distribution of Residential units ZMP Plan’.  
These controls provide a framework to control the location and distribution of 
the remaining affordable homes and will ensure that the controls set out in the 
S106 are fully met. 

10.20. Following discussions with the applicant Officers are satisfied that the 
obligations contained within the LCS planning permission s106 relating to the 
provision of affordable and family housing within PDZ5 are unaffected and can 
still be met through the delivery of the subsequent phases of the delivery of 
PDZ5. It is not considered that the variations to the residential tenure mix 
materially alters the LCS outline permission, the approved ZMP or creates new 
or different significant environmental effects.  

10.21. Phasing: The phasing strategy (included in the PDZ5 ZMP Design and Inclusive 
Access Statement) indicates that Phase 1 of the East Wick neighbourhood 
would comprise Development Parcels 5.5, 5.9 and 5.4. The Phase 1 RMA 
relates to Development Parcels 5.5 and 5.9 only. Development Parcel 5.4 is 
proposed to come forward during phase 4. The inclusion of Development Parcel 
5.4 as part of the phase 4 development is not considered to materially alter the 
LCS outline planning permission, the approved ZMP or create new or different 
significant environmental effects. 

10.22. Levels: The NMA also includes amended PDZ 5 and Site Wide proposed levels 
plans which illustrate the levels which had previously been omitted in error for 
Development Parcel 5.10 and adjoining areas by the East Wick Primary School 
reserved matters application (14/00464/REM). The levels are between 7 and 
10m AOD. 

Page 67



10.23. Conclusion – 16/00503/NMA: Officers have also considered the proposals in 
wider planning terms, taking into consideration the scale of the LCS outline 
planning permission, and consider that the proposals will have no material 
effect on the planning permission as originally granted. It is concluded, 
therefore, that the changes to the parameter plans, Revised Development 
Specification and Framework and ZMP are acceptable as non-material 
amendments to the LCS outline planning permission and therefore the 
application is recommended for approval. Officer analysis of the proposed 
changes is that they would have no material environmental effects over and 
above those previously assessed in the LCS ES and Addendum and therefore 
the conclusions within those statements remain valid.   Officer’s 
recommendation therefore is that the NMA is approved. 

Reserved Matters (reference 16/00520/REM) 

10.24. The application for Reserved Matters (RMA) is submitted on the basis that the 
application for Non Material Amendments to the LCS parameter plans, and 
Revised Development Specification and Framework is considered acceptable.  

Principle of development:  

10.25. The approved LCS Parameter Plans, Design Code, planning conditions, S106 
obligations and the approved ZMP for PDZ5 provide the framework for the 
RMA, against which the proposals are assessed.  

10.26. The proposals also accord with Site Allocation SA1.7 (East Wick and Here 
East) in the Local Plan. The Site Allocation (SA) advocates comprehensive 
development of for mixed use as proposed. Officers are satisfied that the 
proposal has been designed in the context of the area and ZMP for PDZ5 and 
would successfully accommodate later phases of development in East Wick. 

10.27. The following paragraphs consider the RMA application (layout, scale, 
appearance, landscaping and means of access), and the supporting technical 
information required by the LCS Reserved Matters Specification. A Zonal 
Masterplan Conformity Statement has been submitted to accompany the RMA.  

Layout, Scale and Appearance  

10.28. Chapter 7 of the NPPF and London Plan Policies 7.4 and 7.6 require 
development proposals to be of the highest design quality and have appropriate 
regard to local context. Local Plan policies BN1, 4 and 5 reinforce this strategic 
approach and require new development to consider how proposed uses 
integrate with, and relate to, public and private space; provide an accessible 
and inclusive environment; contribute positively to the streetscape; generate an 
active frontage; provide accessible public space; define routes and spaces; and 
promote legibility. The layout, scale and appearance of the Phase 1 
development are also informed by the relevant approved LCS Parameter Plans 
and by the design principles included within the Revised Site Wide and PDZ5 
Design Code and the ZMP. 

Layout 

10.29. The PDZ5 Residential Density Parameter Plan defines Development Parcels 
(DP) within which the development is to be located. However, the parameter 
plans do not define the precise siting of buildings within the DP. The Phase 1 
RMA proposals build on the residential layout proposed by the ZMP including 
the approved relocation of Parkes Street but introduces several improvements, 
primarily around DP5.9 to the north of the site. The built form along Parkes 
Street to the north of Development Block 5.9 has been re-aligned to create an 
increased distance from the nine storey Here East building and an improved 

Page 68



orientation of the residential buildings. This has increased the number of 
unobstructed views to the River Lee Navigational Canal and the North Park, in 
accordance with Local Policy BN.9. 

10.30. The siting of the DP and buildings within them are based on the PDZ5 Footprint 
of ZMP Plan and limits of deviation identified on the approved plan. The 
safeguarded breaks are also provided between Blocks 5.5A, 5.5B and 5.5C, as 
well as within Parcel 5.9. These breaks and separation distances promote clear 
legibility and define public routes. 

10.31. In accordance with the Parameter Plan and ZMP Land Use plans the four DPs 
propose active frontages at ground floor in the form of residential entrances, 
retail, leisure, flexible business space, a nursery and an estate management 
office. Exclusively residential uses are proposed on the upper floors.  

10.32. Housing Standards: The details submitted confirm that the lay out / design of 
the residential elements is such that they exceed the minimum space set out in 
the Housing SPG. All of the units benefit from access to at least 5m2 as 
recommended by the SPG of private amenity space in the form of a private 
garden, roof terrace(s) or a balcony. The total private amenity space provided 
for the Phase 1 development is 3,709m2 which exceeds the baseline minimum 
requirement set out in the Mayor’s Housing SPG of 1,507m2 by more than 
100%.   

10.33. The SPG also states that 90% of new build housing should meet Building 
Regulation requirement M4 (2) ‘accessible and adaptable dwellings’ with the 
remaining 10 per cent meeting Building Regulation requirement M4 (3) 
‘wheelchair user dwellings’. Officers are satisfied that in accordance with the 
SPG and the LCS permission 10% of the proposed units meet the M4 (3) 
category 3 and 90% of units meet the M4 (2) category 2. 

10.34. Daylight and Sunlight: The layout of the Phase 1 development has also been 
influenced by the desire to achieve good levels of amenity including daylight 
and sunlight in accordance with BRE guidance and development plan policy. 
The EIA submitted in support of the LCS permission contained a detailed 
sunlight and daylight assessment looking at impacts both inside and outside of 
the application site. It was informed by the proposed parameter plans, in 
particular the maximum frontage heights parameter plans. A Daylight and 
Sunlight Assessment accompanying the RMA has reviewed the scheme in 
accordance with the BRE guidance. The Applicant’s Daylight and Sunlight 
assessment has been reviewed by PPDT’s environmental consultants who 
have commented that the methodology is robust and comprehensive. 

10.35. Daylight: BRE guidelines set the following recommended Average Daylight 
Factor (ADF) levels for habitable room uses: 1% bedrooms; 1.5% living rooms 
and 2% kitchens. The submitted daylight analysis concludes that 87% of the 
total habitable rooms meet the BRE and British Standard guidance criteria for 
daylight distribution.  Of the 13% of habitable rooms that fall below the criteria, 
PPDT’s Environmental Consultants consider that the shortfalls are marginally 
below the relevant target and on balance are considered to be within acceptable 
tolerances particularly given that in a number of instances the 
balconies/terraces proposed generate below guidance results as these limit 
daylight/sunlight to the rooms behind them.  

10.36. Nevertheless, as the results indicate above, 87% of the scheme will achieve the 
BRE ADF guidance. PPDT’s environmental consultants consider this is a good 
outcome and overall to be in accordance with the guidance.  

Page 69



10.37. PPDT’s Environmental Consultants analysis also conclude that the assessment 
of the proposed development on the daylight enjoyed by the neighbouring 
buildings (Here East, Mossbourne Academy and the Copper Box) and amenity 
areas and proposed developments show that there is unlikely to be any 
significant detrimental impacts from the proposed development and that the 
existing properties will receive satisfactory levels of daylight.   

10.38. Sunlight: Sunlight access within the proposed development is assessed by 
quantifying the Annual Probable Sunlight Hours (APSH) and the fraction of 
APSH occurring during winter (WPSH) experienced at main living room 
windows facing within 90° of south.  The results are as follows: 

• Within the proposed DP5.5A, 80% of main living room windows achieved 
recommended annual sunlight access criteria, 53% achieved 
recommended winter sunlight access criterion and 53% achieved both 
annual and winter criteria. Results indicate that sunlight access to main 
living rooms will be affected during winter by self-shading and shading 
from adjacent buildings.   

• Within the proposed DP5.5B, 80% of main living room windows achieved 
recommended annual sunlight access criteria, 91% achieved 
recommended winter sunlight access criterion and 80% achieved both 
annual and winter criteria. Results indicate that most main living room 
windows will receive a good sunlight access throughout the year. 

• Within the proposed DP5.5C, 82% of main living room windows achieved 
recommended annual sunlight access criteria, 61% achieved 
recommended winter sunlight access criterion and 55% achieved both 
annual and winter criteria. Results indicate that sunlight access to main 
living rooms will be affected during winter by self-shading and shading 
from adjacent buildings.   

• Within the proposed DP5.9, of 40% of main living room windows achieved 
recommended annual sunlight access criteria, 62% achieved 
recommended winter sunlight access criterion and 39% achieved both 
annual and winter criteria. Results indicate that sunlight access to main 
living rooms will be affected by self-shading from recessed balconies and 
shading from adjacent buildings throughout the year. 

10.39. The results of the sunlight analysis indicate that sunlight at main living room 
windows to DPs 5.5A, 5.5B and 5.5C is generally good and accords with 
guidance. Within DP5.9 sunlight will be affected to varying degrees by self-
shading within the proposed development by the presence of projecting and 
inset balconies. At the advice of PPDT’s Environmental Consultants where 
living rooms are not meeting the targets as a result of balconies/terraces, this is 
mitigated by the proposed private amenity space. Given the amenity value of 
balconies Officers are satisfied that where balconies/terraces are provided any 
obstruction to direct sunlight within rooms is acceptable and meets the 
aspiration of the BRE Guidance in so far as they provide residents access to 
sunlight outdoors and provide solar shading to mitigate against potential 
overheating of dwellings. 

10.40. Overall, it is concluded that, considering the proposed developments scale, 
height and massing in this urban context, dwellings within the development will 
receive acceptable levels of direct sunlight in the context of BRE guidance.  

10.41. Sunlight on Open Spaces: There is a requirement within the BRE guidance that 
to appear adequately sunlit throughout the year, at least 50% of a garden or 
amenity area should receive at least 2 hours of sunlight on the 21st March.   

Page 70



10.42. The analysis confirms that public realm spaces around and between the DPs 
will receive BRE recommended access to direct sunlight. Podiums within the 
DPs receive between 54% and 100% of recommended sunlight access, which 
combined with proposed landscaping offers the potential for podium areas to 
provide attractive amenity spaces. Sunlight access to the mews house gardens 
is generally within BRE guidelines but it is acknowledged that this is variable 
depending on orientation and position relative to the proposed development's 
massing. As the gardens are relatively small and immediately adjacent to 
buildings a degree of overshadowing is inevitable. Nevertheless given the 
extent of open space proposed, the LCS outline planning permission gives 
approval to an overall open space provision of 30,000sqm in PDZ5, plus the 
open space provision required by the following conditions: BAP (LCS0.147), 
doorstep play (LCS0.153), local playspace (LCS0.155), youth play space 
(LCS0.156 and LCS0.157) and play space provision (LCS0.152), Officers 
consider that any overshadowing experienced would be offset by the generous 
and rich variety of the open spaces consented in the PDZ. 

10.43. Overall, sunlight access on public realm open spaces is good and is consistent 
with sunlight levels within an urban setting and accords with BRE guidelines. 
PPDT’s Environmental Consultants support these findings.  

10.44. Single Aspect: The layout of the residential units is such that over the whole of 
Phase 1, 176 (56%) of the residential units are single aspect. Of these, 24 
(13.6%) are 3 bedroom units and none of these units are north facing. The 
majority (15) of the three bedroom units are in Parcel 5.9 and these are all 
mitigated to a greater degree by having angled windows and facing south east 
with a relatively open aspect across the Diagonal. The one and two bedroom 
units which are single aspect and face north or north west are mitigated by 
angled windows and / or by having relatively open north west aspects towards 
the Diagonal and open space associated with the Canal Park and primary 
school. Although the number of single aspect flats is a significant proportion of 
the total, these factors mitigate the effects and result in a layout which Officers 
consider to give a good standard of amenity to occupiers and to be acceptable. 
The QRP acknowledges that the design teams have attempted to reduce the 
number of single aspect units and agree that the design and orientation of the 
units help to mitigate this impact. An image of the angled windows can be found 
in appendix 4.e.  

10.45. The layout is also informed by and accords with the PDZ5 ZMP Location of 
Public Open Spaces and Key pedestrian and Cycle Linkages Plan which 
identify a broad zone of Public Open Space, the indicative location of Doorstep 
Play Space, the Location of Pedestrian Priority Areas.  As set out in section 6, 
the layout includes three new areas of public open space located along the 
Diagonal linking North Park into the PDZ. Overall the Phase 1 development, 
and the associated landscape design is considered to adopt an internal and 
external layout which responds to the grain and street widths set out in the 
ZMP; contributes positively to the streetscape; provides good quality outdoor 
spaces; successfully defines public routes and spaces and promotes legibility. 

10.46. Officers consider the layout will create a well-planned, high quality development 
where the primary land use is residential in a range of typologies at appropriate 
densities with extensive open space provision conveniently located for all users. 
The arrangement of the non-residential uses across the site respond sensitively 
to the existing and emerging uses within the vicinity, and would activate key 
routes as advocated by the Local Plan site allocation and would contribute to 
the vitality and viability of Hackney Wick Neighbourhood Centre. Officers are 
satisfied that the proposed layout and design of East Wick Phase 1 will result in 

Page 71



a high standard of amenity for future occupants and compliance with the 
approved ZMP. The proposed layout accords with Local Plan Policy H1 and 
London Plan Policy 3.8 by integrating a mix of housing types into the design to 
meet local and strategic needs, including apartments and duplex units and 
mews houses along mews streets, which accords with the Mayor’s Housing 
SPG.  

Scale  

10.47. The RMA is accompanied by a set of elevation drawings, which increase some 
of the building and frontage heights (see paragraphs 6.8 and appendix 3) 
approved under the LCS outline planning permission and the ZMP. As 
concluded in paragraph 10.10 the height increases are considered to be non-
material.  

10.48. The proposals support Local Plan Policies 1.6 and BN1 and London Plan Policy 
7.4 by respecting the scale, height and massing of the local surroundings. The 
scale, height and massing of the proposed development in Phase 1 follow the 
principles set out in the PDZ5 ZMP in terms of maximum frontage heights and 
DP heights which seek to mediate between the 9 storey scale of Here East and 
East Village. Within Phase 1, the DPs range from between 1 to 6-storeys in 
height. The scale of the proposed buildings are considered to positively 
contribute to the variety of building types and will ensure a new neighbourhood 
that has character both visually and physically. The QRP has commented that 
the proposed scale and massing and different building typologies work well.  

10.49. The detailed design of façades ensure that with the amendments to heights set 
out in the ZMP the proposals provide articulation of the streetscape massing to 
break up long frontages. This is demonstrated in both the horizontal and vertical 
articulation of the building eave line for plot 5.5, with the use of recesses and 
projecting elements and void spaces, and a range of high quality materials to 
ensure the quality of the façades. 

10.50. The Local Plan Site Allocation requires the ‘prevailing and generally expected 
heights’ at East Wick to be 20m above existing ground level. This is 
represented through a mixture of intermittent building heights that together form 
a unique arrangement that contributes to the area’s townscape. Development 
proposed above the 20m height is to be subject to the tests of Policy BN.10. 
Officers are satisfied following clarification with the applicant that all of the 
buildings proposed within Phase 1 are broadly consistent with the LCS and 
either at 20m above existing ground level or lower and therefore not subject to 
the BN10 tests. In any event the scheme meets the policy tests in that the 
architectural quality and choice of materials is considered to be very good; 
responding to existing grain and street widths. The scheme responds positively 
to the streetscape; provides high quality private and communal amenity space 
and public realm; defines public routes and spaces; and promotes legibility.  

10.51. The majority of the buildings are designed to be below the maximum block 
height and contribute to an overall scale that ensures buildings and their 
occupants to have a strong relationship with the street and that the 
microclimatic quality of the public realm is acceptable.  The proposed increases 
to some of the frontage heights set out in the NMA do not exceed the maximum 
block heights approved under the LCS outline planning permission. Officers 
consider that they are contextually appropriate and reinforce the human scale 
attributes of the ZMP.  

10.52. It is considered that the scale of the proposed development respects the context 
within which it is located and will result in development that makes a positive 

Page 72



contribution, and is thus in accordance with policies 7.1, 7.4, 7.6 and 7.7 of the 
London Plan and Local Plan Sub Area 1 and policies BN.1,  BN.4 and SP.1. 

Appearance 

10.53. Policy B.1 of the Local Plan requires careful consideration to be given to 
architectural style, materials, fenestration, colour, building orientation and 
overall appearance.  

10.54. The appearance of the development has been strongly informed by the design 
principles approved as part of the LCS permission, and particularly those 
adopted in the Design Code. The development successfully achieves 
consistency and coherence in the height of buildings and their facade 
composition; an urban character with openings and ground floor entrances that 
overlook the public realm, animate the street and achieve natural surveillance. 
The proposals include clearly defined fronts and backs of buildings that result in 
a block arrangement where fronts of buildings face each other and rear 
elevations face each other across all building types fronting onto primary, 
secondary and tertiary routes. Officers consider that the proposed development 
exhibits an architectural quality that will reinforce its sense of place and identity 
through the design of the blocks and the spaces proposed.  

10.55. The QRP is strongly supportive of the proposals and has viewed the scheme 3 
times through its development at pre and post submission stages. They 
comment that there is ‘... much to admire in the architectural treatment of each 
of the schemes…’ They have also expressed support for ‘…the commitment to 
involve an impressive range of architects in the design …’ 

10.56. Given the diversity of the architecture Officers are pleased to note the design 
team have worked collaboratively with the resultant elevational treatment 
displaying richness and texture with a link and relationship between the 
buildings and landscape through their massing, materiality and uses. Plots 5.5 
(A, B and C) have a visual similarity in so far as the use of brick whilst the 
architectural expression of plot 5.9 responds to the bold character of Here East. 

10.57. In reviewing the architectural expression for DP5. 5 the QRP commented that 
there ‘…may be scope for a little more exuberance and fun in the 
architecture…’ The design team, with support from Officers, have addressed 
these concerns.  Façades have been developed in detail, adding a further level 
of refinement i.e. entrances, cladding and the treatment of the top of the 
buildings. Further enhancements also include the treatment of mortar joints on 
the mews houses as well as the fenestration detailing across the blocks. 
Consideration has been given especially to the ground floor treatment, to 
ensure the frontages of the blocks have maximum animation and presence to 
the public realm.  

10.58. The architects have taken care to strike a balance between the calm, ordered, 
rhythmic requirements of the PDZ5 design code and the creation of buildings 
and blocks with movement, hierarchy and variation of scale which responds to 
the range of spaces they relate to. The blocks and façades are designed to 
express the scale and nature of the internal spaces: large communal and public 
spaces on the ground floor adjacent to the main streets such as Waterden 
Road, Copper Street and East Bay Lane.  The internal layouts combine to 
successfully animate the streets and spaces that contain the buildings. 

10.59. Materials:  The material finishes and details of all the buildings are considered 
to be of high quality, with final samples required by condition. In conjunction 
with the other design teams, a palette of similar, yet subtly contrasting materials 
and finishes have been used across the DPs. The wider effects of this can be 

Page 73



read in the contrast of tone and materiality between the blocks. Officers are 
confident that the materials proposed are contextually responsive to its location.  

10.60. Officers are particularly supportive of the use of the proposed steel frame 
structure to DP5.5A and the metal fenestration detailing, which pick up on the 
industrial aesthetic of Hackney Wick. The brick finishes texture and colour 
variations proposed at DP5.5 are also considered to be robust and reflective of 
their context.  The materials for DP5.9 which as revised now includes an 
aluminium façade treatment also sit well in the context of the Copper Box and 
Here East. 

10.61. Officers are satisfied that the appearance of the development responds 
positively to its surroundings. The application is considered to be in accordance 
with policy BN.1 of the Local Plan. 

Landscaping 

10.62. Policy 7.5 of the London Plan requires the public realm to be secure, 
accessible, inclusive, connected, easy to understand and maintain, relate to 
local context, and incorporate the highest quality design, landscaping, planting, 
street furniture and surfaces. Policies BN.1 and BN.3 require development to 
relate well to an area’s natural and man-made landscape features and 
contribute to tree planting. Policy 7.2 of the London Plan and Policy BN.5 of the 
Local Plan make specific reference to the need for new development to achieve 
the highest standards of accessible and inclusive design. 

10.63. The proposed landscaping takes its design cues from the surrounding QEOP 
such as the use of timber for the external furniture, wildflower seeding mix, 
resulting in clear and coherent open spaces. The various open spaces are 
generous landscaped space, with separate play spaces, and includes park 
squares and amenity spaces, trees and scrub, and species rich grasslands. 
Given also the quality and quantity of public open space which residents would 
have access to it is considered that the amenity space provided would provide a 
good living environment and comply with London Plan and Local Plan policies 
which promote quality and good design in new housing developments. 

10.64. The QRP support the overall strategy for landscape design of the public realm; 
commenting that the much simplified landscape design responds well to its 
earlier comments. The QRP also make the comment that there should be clarity 
around the hierarchy of vehicles, cycles and pedestrians at the Copper Street / 
East Bay junction to avoid confusion. Members will note that this is the 
emerging Sustrans Quietway 6 route linking Aldgate to Hainault which is 
expected to open mid 2017.  Quietway 6 connects Wallis Road via Bridge H10 
and runs along Copper Street and the southern edge of East Wick. As set out in 
paragraph 9.4 Sustrans have commented that they would like to discuss the 
proposed Copper Street footway and cycle details with the applicant. Officers 
have imposed a condition which is accepted by the applicant on the RMA 
(condition 4) to ensure that the details are worked through with Sustrans, the 
applicant and PPDT. 

10.65. The application is considered to comply with Policies 7.2 and 7.5 of the London 
Plan and Policies BN.1, BN.3 and BN.5 of the Local Plan. 

Means of Access  

10.66. The LCS permission defines the QEOP/LCS road hierarchy: Waterden Road is 
an existing primary route, Copper Street an existing tertiary street and East Bay 
Lane a new tertiary street.  Officers are satisfied the streets proposed within 
Phase 1 follow the routes identified in the ZMP and allow access to pedestrians, 

Page 74



cyclists and vehicles in accordance with the identified routes. The LCS 
permission includes planning conditions which set the maximum or minimum 
number of car and cycle parking spaces to be allocated to each land use type, 
including associated provision of Blue Badge and electric vehicle parking 
spaces. 

10.67. On and off-street parking is provided along the routes and within the areas 
identified on the LCS PDZ5 Principles of Car Parking Provision ZMP Plan. The 
proposed number of residential parking spaces within Phase 1 is within the 
maximum provision of stipulated within the LCS (LCS0.218). The proposed 
cycle parking is also within the anticipated maximum number of parking spaces 
identified for each DP in the LCS PDZ5 Car Parking Management Strategy (135 
in DP 5.5 and 41 in DP 5.9). 

10.68. PPDT’s transport consultants reviewed the submission and raise no objections 
as the proposals accord with the LCS Transport Assessment.  Officers are 
satisfied that the application complies with the relevant LCS planning 
conditions. 

10.69. Housing Density: The density of the Phase 1 proposals is 455 habitable 
rooms/ha for DP 5.5 and 301 habitable rooms/ha for DP 5.9 and falls within the 
range approved in the relevant LCS Parameter Plans and ZMP drawings. 

10.70. Biodiversity Habitat: The proposals support Policy BN3 (Maximising 
biodiversity) by maximising opportunities to increase biodiversity, a wider range 
of habitats and resilience to climate change. The Biodiversity strategy for Phase 
1 builds upon the principles set out within the Revised Green Infrastructure 
Strategy and maintains the key biodiversity components established. These are 
the: Built Environment; Parks, Squares & Amenity Space Trees & Scrub. 

10.71. The LCS permission (condition LCS0.144) requires the minimum provision of 
1.76ha of Biodiversity Habitat (BAP) in PDZ5, broken down into the following 
categories: multifunctional open space; streetscape; and green roofs (see table 
6 for quantum distribution).  

10.72. Phase 1 will deliver 31% of the total BAP commitment across PDZ5 which 
equates to 0.276ha as required by the ZMP. Having discussed with the 
applicant Officers are confident that there is a reasonable prospect that the 
minimum provision of 1.76ha of the biodiversity habitat across PDZ 5 will be 
met in the later phases. 

10.73. Play Space: The LCS permission requires a minimum of 2,501m² of play space 
to be provided across PDZ5 (condition LCS0.152). Within Phase 1, specifically 
DP5.9, the LCS requires a minimum of 100m² of doorstep play space to be 
provided (condition LCS0.153). The RMA meets this provision. The location of 
the proposed play space is convenient to the residential units on the 
development and is within a high quality landscaped. The proposals would 
thereby accord with Local Plan policy BN.8 and London Plan policies 3.6 and 
7.5. 

10.74. It should be noted that additional doorstep play within PDZ5 as well as Local 
and Youth Play are required by the LCS to be delivered in other DPs and will be 
part of subsequent phases.  

10.75. The proposed public realm is designed to be rich in biodiversity and include play 
opportunities and places to site distributed throughout the streets and open 
spaces. The amount of publicly accessible open space, play space and BAP 
habitat proposed in East Wick accords with the provision set out in the ZMP.  
Officers are confident that the total targets required by the LCS permission will 

Page 75



be met or exceeded in accordance with London Plan policy 7.18 and Local Plan 
policy BN.7. 

10.76. Green Roofs: The ZMP identifies a total Green Roof area of 0.67ha of BAP 
habitat for PDZ5 (see table 6 paragraph 6.17). Phase 1 will deliver 35% of the 
total Green Roof commitment across PDZ5 which equates to a BAP habitat 
area of 0.233ha. The applicant has given Officers the reassurance that the 
future phases will deliver the balance as set out in the ZMP. 

10.77. Sustainability: The submission includes a Sustainability Policy Compliance 
Statement along with more detailed documents including Energy Statement, 
Microclimate Report, Sustainable Construction Measures, Waste Strategy and 
Water Statement. These documents build on work that was done for the ZMP 
and the requirements of Zonal conditions. The submitted details demonstrate 
that the development will comply with the LCS permission and relevant policies 
with regard to energy conservation and carbon reduction including climate 
change resilience, materials selection and waste management, water supply 
and demand. 

10.78. The development aims to ensure that these issues are embedded throughout 
the development process including procurement. In particular, the following are 
noted and welcomed. 

10.79. The residential units of Phase 1 will achieve a 60% reduction in regulated 
carbon emissions compared to Part L of the 2013 Building regulations before 
carbon offsetting, meeting the Zero Carbon standard. Combined with the non-
residential, Phase 1 will achieve a 51% reduction against Building Regulations. 

10.80. All residential and non-residential units are connected to the Olympic Park 
District Energy Scheme. Renewable energy in the form of PVs will be 
connected to power communal areas of apartment blocks. All residential units 
will comply with full Fabric Energy Efficiency Standards. Non-residential 
elements of Phase 1 target BREEAM Excellent and residential elements target 
Code for Sustainability Homes Level 4 plus.  

10.81. The development provides a range of climate change adaptation measures to 
minimise the contribution to the urban heat island effect and build resilience 
against surface water flooding through urban greening, green roofs and street 
trees. Green roofs, rain gardens and podium gardens that include permeable 
paving and lined storage reduce maximum run-off rates, clean water prior to 
discharge, reduce the volume of water discharged and provide biodiversity, 
local air quality and public space benefits.  

10.82. Reduction in water demand is achieved through the use of water efficient 
specification, smart meters and leak detection and use of rainwater for 
landscape and garden irrigation. All residential units in Phase 1 will reduce 
water demand to no more than 105 litres per person per day and all non-
residential units will aim to reduce non-residential water use by at least 40%. 

10.83. As part of the design, efforts have been made to ensure maximum use of low 
embodied carbon and high recycled content materials. Sustainable construction 
methods will be used including waste, energy, water and materials 
management. 

10.84. Officers and PPDT’s Environmental Consultants are satisfied that the proposed 
measures set out in the submitted Sustainability Policy Compliance Statement 
responds positively to local, regional and National development plan policy and 
guidance in terms of demonstrating a commitment to a sustainable 
development. The proposals also support policy S1 of the Local Plan in terms of 

Page 76



contributing to the health and well-being of those who will reside or work within 
the development. 

10.85. Wind microclimate: A wind microclimate assessment has been undertaken to 
consider the conditions generated by the height, massing and orientation of the 
built form taking surrounding and future development into account. A total of 
122 locations were assessed at ground floor and elevated positions. In terms of 
pedestrian comfort and safety and without any mitigation measures, all 
locations except five were assessed as suitable. With mitigation measures all 
locations were assessed as suitable. The mitigation methods include 
landscaping, tree planting and partly porous screens and a sculptural barrier. 
The relatively modest height and massing of the development is expected, 
therefore, to result in microclimatic conditions that encourage use of external 
public space. 

10.86. Other relevant material considerations required by the LCS Reserved Matters 
Specification have been considered and assessed by Officers and PPDT’s 
Environmental Consultants including contamination and archaeology are 
considered to be acceptable. 

10.87. Parkes Street Approval of Details pursuant to planning permission 
15/00571/FUL: Condition 3 of the Parkes Street permission requires details of 
the southern edge of Parkes Street to be submitted for approval prior to the 
commencement of the LCS in respect of DP 5.9.  The submitted details are 
detailed in paragraphs 6.3 to 6.5 of this report.  The details which include resin 
bonded surface material to match the wider QEOP and 2.5m wide service bays 
and 1.8m wide Blue Badge bays are appropriate and meet the requirements of 
the condition.  

10.88. Officers note that the lighting detail shown on the original submission is not 
included in these details. To that end the recommendation is to approve 
condition 3 subject to the receipt of acceptable lighting details being submitted 
for approval. 

10.89. The details that have been submitted accord with Local Plan policy BN.1 
responding to place 

 

11 HUMAN RIGHTS & EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 Members should take account of the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 
as they relate to the application and the conflicting interests of the Applicants 
and any third party opposing the application in reaching their decisions. The 
provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
processing of the application and the preparation of this report. In particular, 
Article 6 (1), of the European Convention on Human Rights in relation civil rights 
and a fair hearing; Article 8 of the ECHR in relation to the right to respect for 
private and family life and Article 1 Protocol 1 of the ECHR in relation to the 
protection of property have all been taken into account. 

11.2 In addition the Equality Act 2010 provides protection from discrimination in 
respect of certain protected characteristics namely: age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion, or beliefs and sex and 
sexual orientation. It places the Local Planning Authority under a legal duty to 
have due regard to the advancement of equality in the exercise of its powers 
including planning powers. Officers have taken this into account in the 
assessment of the application and Members must be mindful of this duty inter 

Page 77



alia when determining all planning applications. In particular Members must pay 
due regard to the need to: 

a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act; 

b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and; 

c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

11.3 Officers are satisfied that the application material and Officers’ assessment has 
taken into account these issues.  

 

12 CONCLUSION  

12.1 The proposed non-material amendments submitted under application reference 
16/00503/NMA are not considered to materially alter the LCS outline permission 
including the approved ZMP or create any new of different significant 
environmental impacts.  

12.2 The application for approval of Reserved Matters (RMA) for East Wick Phase 1 
relating to the layout, scale, appearance, means of access and landscaping of 
the development for DPs 5.5 and 5.9 demonstrates how the high quality 
contemporary architecture and complimentary landscaping responds to its 
context. This is achieved by the varied and complementary choice and colour of 
the material palette. The proposal includes well-ordered residential plots, and a 
good mix of housing typologies which accord with development plan policy.  
The proposal has been assessed as meeting the ‘liveability’ standards under 
the Mayor’s Housing SPG. Officers consider that the standard and quality of 
accommodation including access to outdoor space is good.  

12.3 Officers’ analysis concludes that the RMA proposals for East Wick Phase 1 will 
result in a scheme which is compliant with the parameter plans (as amended by 
the NMA), Design Code and planning conditions that form part of the outline 
planning permission and ZMP and the relevant London Plan and Local Plan 
policies.  The application for approval of details for the relocation of Parkes 
Street is of acceptable design and specification. 

12.4 In concluding, the applications demonstrate that the development is acceptable 
in terms of highway works, layout, appearance, scale, landscaping, car and 
cycle parking, traffic movements, inclusive access, daylight and sunlight, and 
sustainability. The proposals are supported by the LLDC Quality Review Panel 
and all issues raised by statutory consultees and Officers have been 
satisfactorily resolved.  No objections have been raised by local residents. 

12.5 As was envisaged within the LCS, the proposal will result in positive 
enhancements to the character, appearance and setting of the QEOP and the 
wider area’s regeneration.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



13 PLANNING CONDITIONS 

Reserved Matters (16/00520/RMA) - Planning Conditions 

1. Works in accordance with approved details 

Unless minor variations have been agreed by the Local Planning Authority and 
to the extent that it does not deviate from this permission, the development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the following details and plan numbers: 

(to be inserted prior to the decision notice being issued) 

and the description of development contained in the application and any other 
plans, drawings, documents, details, schemes or strategies which have been 
approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to these conditions. 

Reason: To ensure that all works are properly implemented and retained. 

2. Samples of Materials 

No above ground works shall take place until material samples/sample-
panels/sample-boards of all external facing materials to be used in the 
carrying out of this permission shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority; the development shall not be carried out 
otherwise than in accordance with any such approval given.  

Reason: In order to ensure that these samples will make an acceptable 
contextual response in terms of materials to be used, and achieve an 
satisfactory quality of design and detailing. 

3. Sound Insulation 

No above ground works shall take place until details of the proposed sound 
insulation scheme to be implemented between the residential accommodation 
and any non-residential uses shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. Details should include airborne and impact sound 
insulation. The developer shall certify to the local planning authority that the 
noise mitigation measures agreed have been installed. The approved scheme 
is to be completed prior to occupation of the development and shall be 
permanently maintained thereafter.  

Reason: To protect the amenity of future occupants and/or neighbours. 

4. Landscaping Copper Street Northern Footpath 

Notwithstanding the approved landscape details, no landscape works to the 
northern footpath on Copper Street shall be commenced until further details of 
the Copper Street footpath and cycle route have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The footpath and cycle 
route details should be subject to consultation with Sustrans prior to the 
submission to the Local Planning Authority. The works shall be implemented 
as approved. 

Reason: In the interest of pedestrian and cyclist amenity. 

5. Shopfront 

Before any part of the retail or office floorspace is fitted out for use, details of 
the shopfronts, canopies, security shutters and signage to be installed, shall 
follow the principles set out in the Design and Inclusive Access Statement and 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

Page 79



Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the completed development 

in the interests of visual amenity. 

6. Landscaping Development Parcel 5.9 

Notwithstanding the approved landscape details no landscape works to 
Development Parcel 5.9 shall be commenced until details of the Door Step 
Play Area. The design of the Door Step Play Area shall have regard to the 
wind mitigation measures set out in the microclimate report have been 
submitted and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  The details 
shall include a programme for implementation.  The Door Step Play area shall 
be implemented as approved.   

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the completed development 

in the interests of visual amenity.  

INFORMATIVE: 

1. The applicant is reminded that all lighting details including lighting lux details 
and hours of operation are to be submitted pursuant to condition LCS0.33. 

 

Parkes Street Approval of Details (16/00502/AOD) - Planning Conditions 

1. Works in accordance with approved details 

Unless minor variations have been agreed by the Local Planning Authority and 

to the extent that it does not deviate from this permission, the development shall 

be carried out in accordance with the following details and plan numbers  

(to be confirmed and inserted prior to the decision notice being issued)  

and the description of development contained in the application and any other 

plans, drawings, documents, details, schemes or strategies which have been 

approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to these conditions. 

Reason: To ensure that all works are properly implemented and retained. 

 

Appendices 

Appendix 1  Extent of the LCS permission 

Appendix 2  RMA – Building and Frontage Heights 

Appendix 3  (a) Proposed site location plan 
(b) Development Block 5.5A (Studio Egret West) 
(c) Development Block 5.5B (Piercy and Company) 

  (d) Development Block 5.5C (Astudio) 
  (e) Development Block 5.9 (Studio Egret West) 
  (e) Elevations /Visualisations 
  (f) Landscape drawing (Fabrik) 
  (g) QRP Response Letter 

Page 80



Appendix 1 

Site Wide Illustrative LCS Masterplan 

Page 81



Appendix

RMA Building & Frontage Heights

Page 82



Page 83



Site Location Plan 

Page 84



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Development Parcels

Development Block 5.5A (Studio Egret West) 

Page 85



 

 

 

 

Indicative Floor Plan (First Floor) 

Page 86



 

 

 

 

 

 

Development Block 5.5B (Piercy & Company) 

Page 87



 

 

 

 

 

Indicative Floor Plan (ground floor) 

Page 88



 

 

 

 

 

 

Development Block 5.5C (ASTUDIO) 

Page 89



 

 

 

 

Indicative Floor Plan (first floor) 

Page 90



 

 

 

 

 

Page 91



 

 

 

 

 

 

Development Block 5.9 (Studio Egret West) 

Page 92



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Indicative Floor Plan (Second Floor) 

Wheelchair Adaptable Units 

Page 93



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Non-residential Elements 

Example of Mitigated Single Aspect Units 

Page 94



 

 

 

Landscape Masterplan (Fabrik) 

Parkes Street 

Page 95



Report of Planning Application Review Meeting 
15 December 2016 
QRP76_East Wick Phase 1  

London Legacy Development Corporation Quality Review Panel 

Report of Planning Application Review Meeting: East Wick Phase 1

Thursday 15 December 2016 

Level 10, 1 Stratford Place, Montfichet Road, London E20 1EJ 

Panel  

Peter Studdert (chair) 
Russell Curtis  

Attendees 

Anne Ogundiya  LLDC Planning Policy and Decisions Team 
Leona Roche   London Legacy Development Corporation 
Tony Westbrook  London Legacy Development Corporation  
Tessa Kordeczka  Frame Projects  

Report also copied to 

Anthony Hollingsworth LLDC Planning Policy and Decisions Team 
Peter Maxwell   London Legacy Development Corporation  
Andrew Tesseyman  London Legacy Development Corporation 
Andrew Cunningham  London Borough of Hackney  

Note on process 

The Quality Review Panel comments below follow on from two pre-application 
reviews and a planning application review. Panel members who attended the 
previous meetings were: Peter Studdert (chair); John Lyall; Adam Khan; Catherine 
Burd; Peter St John; Lindsey Whitelaw; David Bonnett; and David Gilpin.  

Page 96



Report of Planning Application Review Meeting 
15 December 2016 
QRP76_East Wick Phase 1  

1. Project name and site address 

East Wick: PDZ5, northwestern part of Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park 

Phase 1 reserved matters application: Development Parcels 5.5 and 5.9 

Planning application reference: 16/00520/REM 

2. Presenting team 

Andrew Atkins  East Wick and Sweetwater Projects 
Pádraig Noone East Wick and Sweetwater Projects 
Patrick Rudd  Piercy & Company 
Matti Lampila  Piercy & Company 
Max Rengifo  Astudio 
Matthew Sharpe Quod 

3.

The planning authority supports the reserved matters application for East Wick Phase 

1. This includes proposals for Parcels 5.5 and 5.9 of the East Wick Zonal masterplan, 

and the associated public realm. The scheme establishes an appropriately tight urban 

grain, as well as an effective link between Hackney Wick and Queen Elizabeth 

Olympic Park. There has been a commitment to achieving high quality design and 

comments.  

4. Qu

Summary 

The Quality Review Panel repeats its support for approval of the reserved matters 

application for East Wick Phase 1. The designs teams  Studio Egret West; Astudio; 

and Piercy & Company  have responded well to its earlier comments. The panel 

finds much to admire in the distinctive architecture proposed for both Parcels 5.5 and 

5.9. The quality of residential accommodation has been improved by fewer single 

aspect units and shorter access corridors benefiting from increased natural light. The 

panel thinks that the simplified landscape strategy will work well and that 

modifications to the wider public realm will succeed in creating a safe and friendly 

environment where pedestrians enjoy priority.  

These comments are expanded below, and those made at previous reviews that 

remain relevant are repeated for clarity. 

Architectural expression  

 The panel has welcomed the quality and variety of the architecture achieved 

by the involvement of three architectural practices  Studio Egret West; 

Astudio; and Piercy & Company  in the design of buildings for Parcels 5.5 

and 5.9.  

Page 97



Report of Planning Application Review Meeting 
15 December 2016 
QRP76_East Wick Phase 1  

 It finds much to admire in the distinctive architectural expression and materials 

proposed for the separate blocks within each parcel. 

 The materiality of the two buildings that make up Parcel 5.9 has been revised. 

The timber cladding initially proposed has been replaced by aluminium (with 

floor to ceiling glazing at ground floor level to provide an active frontage). 

 The panel thinks that this more robust and durable material has the potential 

to be highly successful. The vertical aluminium fins are a particularly effective 

way of articulating the balconies, and the interplay between horizontal and 

vertical results in interesting and satisfying elevations.  

 The intriguing façade created by the frame  now steel rather than timber  on 

the elevation of Parcel 5.5A along East Bay Lane and The Diagonal is strongly 

supported. 

 The panel repeats its earlier advice, however, that care needs to be taken to 

ensure that the frame appears integral to the building, rather than an 

extraneous addition.  

 The panel suggests that the relationship between frame and building might be 

better resolved if the rhythm of the frame corresponds to that of the building, 

so that the steel does not meet the brickwork in what would appear to be a 

random way.  

 The panel stresses that meticulous detailed design will be essential to achieve 

the high quality aspired to. 

Residential accommodation 

 Concerns had been raised about the relatively high proportion of single 

aspect units included in both Parcels 5.5 and 5.9, as well as lengthy central 

access corridors.

 The panel acknowledges that the design teams have attempted, as far as 

possible, to reduce the number of single aspect units and to mitigate the 

impact on those that are, including by generous unit sizes and faceted 

façades to provide an additional aspect. 

 The panel had previously welcomed revisions to internal layouts that resulted 

in shorter access corridors benefiting from increased natural light.  

Public realm / landscape design 

 The panel welcomes revisions made to both the public realm and landscape 

design strategies. The much simplified landscape design responds well to its 

earlier comments. The panel also supports amendments made to the public 

realm along East Bay Lane and the junction between East Bay Lane and 

Copper Street, at the approach to Bridge H10. 

Page 98



Report of Planning Application Review Meeting 
15 December 2016 
QRP76_East Wick Phase 1  

 Clarity must be ensured in order to avoid any confusion around the hierarchy 

of vehicles, cycles and pedestrians at this junction  especially as this can be 

expected to be a popular cycle route from Hackney Wick, across Bridge H10, 

to Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park.   

Next steps

 The Quality Review Panel is pleased to support approval of the reserved 

matters application for East Wick Phase 1. 

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Subject: Decisions Made Under Delegated Authority 

Meeting date:  24 January 2017 

Report to: Planning Decisions Committee 

Report of: Anthony Hollingsworth, Director of Planning Policy and 
Decisions 

 
FOR NOTING 

This report will be considered in public 

 
 

1. SUMMARY 

1.1. This report set out a list of all decisions taken by officers between 1 and 31 
December 2016. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 The Committee is asked to note the report and the attached Appendix 1. 

 
 
APPENDICES 
Appendix 1 – Delegated Decisions Report – 1 to 31 December 2016 

Agenda Item 7

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



LLDC Delegated Decisions Report – December 2016 

 

Reference Type Valid Date Location Description Applicant Decision Date Status Reference 

16/00573/NMA Non-Material 

Amendment 

(Section 96A 

applications) 

02-Nov-

2016 

Plot N17, Zone 3, 

Stratford City, land 

bounded by 

Celebration 

Avenue, Penny 

Brooke Street and 

De Coubertin 

Street, Stratford, 

E20 

Application under s96A TCPA for non-

material amendments to planning 

permission 16/00212/REM dated 09 

August 2016 comprising the following: 

. Removal of levels 18 and 19; 

. Reduction in the number of hotel 

rooms from 304 to 285; 

. Amendment of eastern balcony 'kink' 

to retain the proportional balance of 

the building and to better reference 

the height of adjacent residential 

blocks; 

. Amended floor layouts; 

. Relocation of plant at floor 17; and 

. A reduction in the number of car 

parking spaces located within the 

basement to 16 spaces. 

Times Two 

Securities 

Limited 

01-Dec-2016 Granted 

NMA 

Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00566/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

26-Oct-2016 61-63, Wallis Road, 

Hackney, LONDON, 

E9 5LH 

Submission of details pursuant to 

condition 17 (Delivery and Servicing 

Management Plan) of planning 

permission 13/00449/FUL. 

Chris Currell, 

61 Wallis 

Road Ltd. 

01-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
3



LLDC Delegated Decisions Report – December 2016 

Reference Type Valid Date Location Description Applicant Decision Date Status Reference 

16/00450/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

05-Sep-2016 Plot N17, Zone 3, 

Stratford City, land 

bounded by 

Celebration 

Avenue, Penny 

Brooke Street and 

De Coubertin 

Street, Stratford, 

E20 

Application for the Approval of Details 

pursuant to conditions L1 (Hydrology 

and Water Resources) L12 (Piling) M1 

(Ground Resources and Remediation 

Strategy) M2 (Ground Resources and 

Remediation Strategy Requirements) 

M3 (Ground Contamination 

Assessment Report) and M4 (Ground 

Contamination Assessment Report 

Requirements) attached to the outline 

planning permission 

10/90641/EXTODA dated 30/03/2012 

in so far as it relates to the approved 

development at Plot N17. 

Rhys Allen, 

Times Two 

Securities 

Limited 

01-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00421/FUL Full planning 

application 

19-Aug-2016 International 

Square, Westfield, 

LONDON, Stratford 

City Zone 1, E20 1EE 

Change of use of land within 

International Square for a mobile 

coffee kiosk and ancillary seating area. 

Westfield 

Europe Ltd 

01-Dec-2016 Refuse Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00576/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

20-Oct-2016 The River House, 3, 

Blaker Road, 

Stratford, LONDON, 

E15 2PY 

Submission of details pursuant to fully 

discharge condition 3 (Material 

Samples) of planning permission 

15/00164/FUL dated 17 July 2015. 

Gareth 

Roberts, 

Robert & 

Treguer Ltd 

02-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00540/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

10-Oct-2016 Land at Bream 

Street at the 

junction of Stour 

Road & Dace Road, 

Fish Island, London 

Application for Approval of Details 

pursuant to condition 15 part a 

(Archaeological Evaluation 

Programme) of planning permission 

reference 15/00278/FUL dated 25 

August 2016. 

Quadrant 

Construction, 

c/o agent 

02-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
4



LLDC Delegated Decisions Report – December 2016 

Reference Type Valid Date Location Description Applicant Decision Date Status Reference 

16/00341/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

08-Jul-2016 Olympic Stadium, 

PDZ 3, Queen 

Elizabeth Olympic 

Park, London 

Submission of details pursuant to 

Conditions OST.113 (Noise 

Management), OST.119 (Stadium 

Management), OST.121 (Community 

Facilities Engagement Plan) and 

OST.122 (Stadium Community Liaison 

Group) of the Olympic Stadium 

Transformation planning permission 

12/00066/FUM. 

Andrew 

Tesseyman, 

LLDC- 

Development 

05-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00506/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

30-Sep-2016 Bobby Moore 

Academy, Planning 

Delivery Zone 4, 

Land east of Lea 

Navigation River 

and west of the 

Olympic Stadium, 

(Stadium Island) 

Application for Approval of Details 

submitted pursuant to fully discharge 

condition 4 (Changing Room Block) 

attached to planning permission 

16/00039/REM dated 1st June 2016. 

Balfour 

Beatty, c/o 

The Agent 

06-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00508/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

28-Sep-2016 Planning Delivery 

Zone 4 - Land east 

of River Lee 

Navigation and 

west of the Olympic 

Stadium (Stadium 

Island) 

Submission of details pursuant to 

condition 13 (Charging Point Details) of 

planning permission 16/00039/REM 

Balfour Beatty 06-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00507/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

28-Sep-2016 Planning Delivery 

Zone 4 - Land east 

of River Lee 

Navigation and 

west of the Olympic 

Stadium (Stadium 

Island) 

Submission of details pursuant to 

condition 7 (Site Boundary Treatment) 

of planning permission 16/00039/REM. 

Balfour Beatty 06-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
5



LLDC Delegated Decisions Report – December 2016 

Reference Type Valid Date Location Description Applicant Decision Date Status Reference 

16/00119/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

12-Apr-2016 Land At 85, 105 And 

115 Monier Road, 

Bounded By Monier 

Road, Wyke Road 

And Roach Road, 

London E3 

Submission of details pursuant to 

Condition 11 (Landscape Details) of 

planning permission 13/00204/FUM 

dated 25th March 2014. 

Peabody, c/o 

agent 

06-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00086/106 Section 106 

Details 

10-Mar-

2016 

Land At 85, 105 And 

115 Monier Road, 

Bounded By Monier 

Road, Wyke Road 

And Roach Road, 

London E3 

Submission of details pursuant to 

Schedule 3, Clause 1.1.1 (Zonal Travel 

Plan) of the Section 106 Agreement 

associated with planning permission 

13/00204/FUM dated 25 March 2014. 

Peabody 06-Dec-2016 S106 

Response 

Letter 

Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00085/106 Section 106 

Details 

10-Mar-

2016 

Neptune Wharf site 

comprising land 

bounded to the 

north by Hertford 

Union Canal, to the 

east by Roach Road, 

to the South by 

Wyke Road and to 

the west by 

Wansbeck Road 

Submission of details pursuant to 

Schedule 7, Clause 1.1.1 (Zonal Travel 

Plan) of the Section 106 Agreement 

associated with planning permission 

12/00210/OUT dated 27 March 2014. 

Peabody 06-Dec-2016 S106 

Response 

Letter 

Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00515/106 Section 106 

Details 

30-Sep-2016 1-2 Hepscott Road, 

London, E9 5HB 

Submission of details pursuant to 

Schedule 1, Clause 1.1 (Affordable 

Housing Provider) of the Section 106 

Agreement associated with planning 

permission 15/00446/FUL dated 20 

June 2016. 

Laurence 

Quail, Aitch 

Group 

08-Dec-2016 S106 

Response 

Letter 

Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00538/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

17-Oct-2016 Land at Bream 

Street at the 

junction of Stour 

Road & Dace Road, 

Fish Island, London 

Application for Approval of Details 

pursuant to condition 14 (Water 

Supply) of planning permission 

reference 15/00278/FUL dated 25 

August 2016. 

Quadrant 

Construction, 

c/o agent 

09-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
6



LLDC Delegated Decisions Report – December 2016 

Reference Type Valid Date Location Description Applicant Decision Date Status Reference 

16/00539/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

28-Oct-2016 Land at Bream 

Street at the 

junction of Stour 

Road & Dace Road, 

Fish Island, London 

Application for Approval of Details 

pursuant to condition 3 (Notice of 

Commencement) of planning 

permission reference 15/00278/FUL 

dated 25 August 2016. 

Quadrant 

Construction, 

c/o agent 

09-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

15/00535/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

23-Oct-2015 Land east of Sugar 

House Lane, 

Stratford, London, 

E15 2QS 

Application for the Approval of Details 

submitted pursuant to condition C3A 

(Interim Three Mills Moorings Facilities 

Strategy) of planning permission 

12/00336/LTGOUT/LBNM dated 27 

September 2012 

Vastint UK BV 09-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00638/106 Section 106 

Details 

07-Nov-

2016 

Duncan House, High 

Street, Stratford, 

London, E15 2JB 

Submission of details pursuant to 

Schedule 8 (Design Monitoring) Part 1, 

Clause 1.2 (Design Team Statement) of 

the Section 106 Agreement associated 

with planning permission 

15/00598/FUL dated 25 August 2016. 

Lisa O'Hanlon, 

Watkin Jones 

Group 

13-Dec-2016 S106 

Response 

Letter 

Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00532/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

17-Oct-2016 Queen Elizabeth 

Olympic Park 

Submission of details pursuant to 

condition 11 (Events Programme) of 

planning permission 16/00232/VAR. 

Thomas 

Powell, 

Development 

Directorate 

13-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00308/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

28-Jun-2016 1-2 Hepscott Road, 

London, E9 5HB 

Application for Approval of Details 

pursuant to Condition 24 (Air Quality) 

of planning permission reference 

15/00446/FUL dated 20 June 2016. 

 1-2 Hepscott 

Road Ltd, 1-2 

Hepscott 

Road Ltd, C/O 

Agent 

13-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00559/FUL Full planning 

application 

20-Oct-2016 Unit 15.2, 8-9 

Penny Brookes 

Street, East Village, 

LONDON, Stratford, 

E20 1BH 

Change of use of Unit 15.2 from retail 

(Use Class A1-A5) to guitar tuition 

studio (Use Class D1). 

QDD Athletes 

Village UK 

Limited 

14-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00579/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

20-Oct-2016 Hackney Wick 

Overground 

Station, Wallis 

Road, Hackney, 

London, E9 5ER 

Application for Approval of Details 

pursuant to Condition 25 (Quality of 

Imported Fill) of planning permission 

14/00275/FUL dated 23rd September 

2014. 

Matthew 

Wilson, 

VolkerFitzpatr

ick Ltd 

14-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
7



LLDC Delegated Decisions Report – December 2016 

Reference Type Valid Date Location Description Applicant Decision Date Status Reference 

16/00545/106 Section 106 

Details 

12-Oct-2016 Westfield Stratford 

City, Queen 

Elizabeth Olympic 

Park, London, E20 

1EJ 

Submission of details pursuant to 

section 2.16 (Monitoring and Review) 

of the s106 agreement for Stratford 

City dated 18 June 2009 - Travel Plan 

Monitoring 

Lisa Webb, 

Westfield 

Europe 

Limited 

14-Dec-2016 S106 

Response 

Letter 

Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00525/SCRE

S 

Screening 

Opinions 

06-Oct-2016 Stratford City Zone 

2 (The International 

Quarter), London, 

E15 2EG 

Request for an EIA Screening Opinion 

under Regulation 5 of the Town and 

County Planning (Environmental 

Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011 

in relation to an application (ref: 

16/00523/REM) for the approval of 

Reserved Matters pursuant to 

conditions B1, B8, B9, B10, Q1 and Q4 

of the Stratford City Outline Planning 

Permission (Ref: 10/90641/EXTODA) 

relating to details of layout, scale, 

appearance, access and landscaping of 

Olympic Promenade, International 

Square and Secondary Road S2 (part) 

comprising public open space and 

urban green space including key 

public/pedestrian areas, hard and soft 

landscaping and associated works. 

Helena 

Malcolm, 

Stratford City 

Business 

District 

14-Dec-2016 Screening Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00364/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

19-Jul-2016 Plot S6, The 

International 

Quarter (TIQ) 

South, land 

adjacent to 

Westfield Avenue, 

Zone 2 Stratford 

City 

Partial approval of details pursuant to 

Condition 2 (Detailed Drawings) and 

full approval of details pursuant to 

Condition 3 (Colour and Materials) of 

planning permission 15/00003/REM 

dated 20th October 2015. 

Adam Birch, 

Stratford City 

Business 

District 

Limited 

14-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
8



LLDC Delegated Decisions Report – December 2016 

Reference Type Valid Date Location Description Applicant Decision Date Status Reference 

16/00363/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

19-Jul-2016 Plot S6, The 

International 

Quarter (TIQ) 

South, land 

adjacent to 

Westfield Avenue, 

Zone 2 Stratford 

City 

Application for the partial approval of 

details pursuant to condition B10 

(External Materials) of outline planning 

permission 10/90641/EXTODA dated 

30th March 2012 in so far as it relates 

to plots S6 

Adam Birch, 

Stratford City 

Business 

District 

Limited 

14-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00361/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

19-Jul-2016 Plot S5, The 

International 

Quarter (TIQ) 

South, land 

adjacent to 

Westfield Avenue, 

Zone 2 Stratford 

City 

Application for the partial approval of 

details pursuant to condition B10 

(External Materials) of outline planning 

permission 10/90641/EXTODA dated 

30/03/2012 in so far as it relates to 

plots S5. 

Simone Santi, 

Stratford City 

Business 

District 

Limited 

14-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00362/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

19-Jul-2016 Plot S5, The 

International 

Quarter (TIQ) 

South, land 

adjacent to 

Westfield Avenue, 

Zone 2 Stratford 

City 

Partial approval of details pursuant to 

conditions 2 (Detailed Drawings) and 

full approval od details pursuant to 

Condition 3 (Colour and Materials) of 

planning permission 15/00002/REM 

dated 29th October 2015. 

Simone Santi, 

Stratford City 

Business 

District 

Limited 

14-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00589/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

31-Oct-2016 33-35 Monier Road, 

London, E3 2PR 

Application for Approval of Details 

submitted pursuant to Condition 18 

(Cycle Storage & Facilities- Details) of 

planning permission reference 

15/00212/FUL dated 24 March 2016. 

Paul Rose, 

Aitch 

Construction 

Limited 

15-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00549/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

14-Oct-2016 Land at Bream 

Street at the 

junction of Stour 

Road & Dace Road, 

Fish Island, London 

Submission of details pursuant to 

condition 43 (Demolition) of planning 

permission 15/00278/FUL. 

Quadrant 

Construction 

15-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
9



LLDC Delegated Decisions Report – December 2016 

Reference Type Valid Date Location Description Applicant Decision Date Status Reference 

16/00432/FUL Full planning 

application 

15-Sep-2016 The Greenway, High 

Street to Canning 

Road, Stratford, 

London 

Installation of lighting columns, 

combined lighting and CCTV columns 

and solar powered ground mounted 

LED wayfinding markers along the 

Greenway from Stratford High Street 

to Abbey Creek. 

Murray 

Woodburn, 

London 

Borough of 

Newham 

15-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00604/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

31-Oct-2016 Land at Hancock 

Road, Bromley by 

Bow, London, E3 

Submission of details pursuant to fully 

discharge Condition B13b (Site 

Investigation and Remediation 

Strategy- Verification Report) of 

planning permission reference 

PA/11/02423/LBTH dated 27th 

September 2012 as amended by 

planning permission reference 

13/00176/VAR dated 24 June 2013  in 

so far as it relates to Building R4. 

Steven Hall, 

Southern 

Housing 

Group 

19-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00626/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

10-Nov-

2016 

Land at Hancock 

Road, Bromley by 

Bow, London, E3 

Application for Approval of Details 

submitted pursuant to Condition C28 

(Code for Sustainable Homes Pre-

Assessment) of planning permission 

reference PA/11/02423/LBTH dated 

27th September 2012 as amended by 

planning permission reference 

13/00176/VAR dated 24 June 2013. 

Steven Hall, 

Southern 

Housing 

Group 

20-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00618/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

10-Nov-

2016 

Land at Hancock 

Road, Bromley by 

Bow, London, E3 

Application for Approval of Details 

submitted pursuant to Condition C12 

(Archaeology- Written Scheme of 

Investigation) of planning permission 

reference PA/11/02423/LBTH dated 

27th September 2012 as amended by 

planning permission reference 

13/00176/VAR dated 24 June 2013. 

Steven Hall, 

Southern 

Housing 

Group 

20-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
0



LLDC Delegated Decisions Report – December 2016 

Reference Type Valid Date Location Description Applicant Decision Date Status Reference 

16/00617/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

10-Nov-

2016 

Land at Hancock 

Road, Bromley by 

Bow, London, E3 

Application for Approval of Details 

submitted pursuant to Condition A17 

(Erection of Tower Cranes) of planning 

permission reference 

PA/11/02423/LBTH dated 27th 

September 2012 as amended by 

planning permission reference 

13/00176/VAR dated 24 June 2013. 

Steven Hall, 

Southern 

Housing 

Group 

20-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00599/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

27-Oct-2016 ArcelorMittal Orbit 

PDZ 2, Queen 

Elizabeth Olympic 

Park, London 

Submission of details pursuant to 

condition 6 (Operation Management 

Plan) of planning permission 

15/00213/FUL. 

Jennifer 

Angus, 

Development 

20-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00553/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

14-Oct-2016 Bobby Moore 

Academy, Planning 

Delivery Zone 4, 

Land east of Lea 

Navigation River 

and west of the 

Olympic Stadium, 

(Stadium Island) 

Application for Approval of Details 

submitted pursuant to fully discharge 

condition 12 (Safety Audit) attached to 

planning permission 16/00039/REM 

dated 1st June 2016. 

Balfour 

Beatty, c/o 

The Agent 

21-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00541/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

10-Oct-2016 Land at Bream 

Street at the 

junction of Stour 

Road & Dace Road, 

Fish Island, London 

Application for Approval of Details to 

fully discharge conditions 4 (Code of 

Construction Practice) and 5 

(Construction Management Plan) 

associated with planning permission 

15/00278/FUL dated 25 August 2016. 

Quadrant 

Construction, 

c/o agent 

21-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
1



LLDC Delegated Decisions Report – December 2016 

Reference Type Valid Date Location Description Applicant Decision Date Status Reference 

16/00103/REM Reserved Matters 

Application 

23-Mar-

2016 

Neptune Wharf site 

comprising land 

bounded to the 

north by Hertford 

Union Canal, to the 

east by Roach Road, 

to the South by 

Wyke Road and to 

the west by 

Wansbeck Road 

Reserved matters application pursuant 

to 12/00210/OUT (as amended by 

application 15/00337/VAR) for access, 

appearance, layout and scale of Block 

A, which comprises a single six storey 

building containing 300 sqm of 

commercial space at ground and 

mezzanine floor and 16 dwellings 

above, along with refuse / recycling 

facilities and cycle parking and the 

partial submission of details pursuant 

to condition DZ.4 (Details/ Samples of 

All External Materials) of planning 

permission reference 12/00210/OUT 

(as amended by application 

15/00337/VAR). 

Peabody 21-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00634/106 Section 106 

Details 

04-Nov-

2016 

Land at Bream 

Street at the 

junction of Stour 

Road & Dace Road, 

Fish Island, London 

Submission of details pursuant to 

Schedule 6 (Employment and Training), 

Part 3, Paragraph 3.3 (Local Labour 

Strategy) of the Section 106 Agreement 

associated with planning permission 

15/00278FUL dated 25 August 2016. 

Matthew 

Sherwood, 

Quod Limited 

22-Dec-2016 S106 

Response 

Letter 

Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00641/FUL Full planning 

application 

22-Nov-

2016 

Main Press Centre 

Queen Elizabeth 

Olympic Park, 

Eastway, Hackney, 

LONDON, E20 3BS 

Temporary change of use of MPC 

ground floor retail unit to flexible 

A1/3/4/5, D1/D2 uses. 

Gavin Poole, 

Here East 

22-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

16/00309/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

30-Jun-2016 52-54 White Post 

Lane, London, E9 

5EN 

Application for Approval of Details 

pursuant to Condition 10 (Detailed 

Drawings) of planning permission 

15/00416/FUL dated 21st April 2016. 

 52-54 White 

Post Lane Ltd, 

52-54 White 

Post Lane Ltd, 

C/O Agent 

22-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
2



LLDC Delegated Decisions Report – December 2016 

Reference Type Valid Date Location Description Applicant Decision Date Status Reference 

16/00356/AOD Approval of 

details 

(conditions) 

18-Jul-2016 52-54 White Post 

Lane, London, E9 

5EN 

Application for Approval of Details 

pursuant to conditions 7 (Approval of 

road works necessary) and 11 

(Deliveries and servicing management 

plan) of planning permission 

15/00416/FUL dated 21st April 2016. 

 52-54 White 

Post Lane Ltd, 

52-54 White 

Post Lane Ltd, 

C/O Agent 

23-Dec-2016 Approve Delegated to 

the Director 

of PPDT 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
3



P
a
g
e
 1

1
4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting held on 20 December 2016
	5 Strand East Bridge - 16/00423/REM
	05b Appendices 1-7

	6 East Wick Phase 1 - 16/00530/NMA; 16/00520/REM; 16/00502/AOD
	06b - Appendices 1 - 4f - East Wick

	7 Decisions Made Under Delegated Authority
	07b Appendix 1 - Decisions Made Under Delegated Authority


